
5 

6 

1 

13 

14 

15 

16 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Wednesday, June 20, 2012 

Name Please rint Affiliation 

� 

Phone No. 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Wednesday, June 20, 2012 

rint) Affiliation 

i' 

Phone No. 



Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Telephone 602-771-8487 
Fax 602-771-8686 

Web Page: www.azwaterbank.gov 

PLEASE POST 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given that there will be a meeting of the 
Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission on Wednesday, June 20, 2012 at 10:00 a.m. at 
the Arizona Department of Water Resources, 3550 North Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 
85012, Upper Verde Conference Room. The meeting is open to the general public. 

Dated this 19th 
day of June, 2012 

FINAL AGENDA 

Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission Meeting 

I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

11. Approval of Minutes
• March 21, 2012 meeting

Ill. Water Banking Staff Activities 
• Deliveries
• CAWCD ad valorem tax levy
• Arizona State Treasurer's Office
• Web page updates
• On-going Indian settlement negotiations

IV. Distribution of AWBA Long-Term Storage Credits During Shortages
• Ad Hoc Group
• Update on credit distribution discussions with CAWCD and ADWR

V. 2011 Annual Report
• Overview of 2011 Annual Report
• Discussion regarding Ten-Year Plan 2013-2022
• Potential approval of 2011 Annual Report and Ten-Year Plan

VI. FY 2013 Administrative Budget
• Overview of FY 2013 administrative budget
• Potential adoption of FY 2013 administrative budget



VI I. Call to the Public 

Future Meeting Dates: 
Wednesday, September 19, 2012 
Wednesday, December 19, 2012 

All visitors must use the south elevators; please stop at the 2
nd 

floor to sign-in and receive a visitor's badge.
Badges are to be displayed at all times. Visitors are also required to sign out and return their badges. Thank 
you for your assistance. 

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, by 
contacting Moreno at 602-771-8530 or 602-771-8501 (TDD). Requests should be made as early as possible 
to allow time to arrange the accommodation. 



TeniSueC.Rossi 
. . . 

.----------"""I',, Tern Sue Rossi has been emptoyect as the Tectmicat Administrator for the water 
., Banking Authority since May of 2012. She began working in waler resou nces in 
·. 1987 when she started her career aUhe Arrzona Department of Water·

, Resources. In the 90s, Ms. Rossi became the first water resource manager torthe
. City of Pecma and .eventually for Citizens Water Resources (now odba Artzona ·
. American}. In 2001, Ms. Rossi returned to government service as a Senior Policy
· Analyst for tile Central AriZ.Ona Project until coming to the Bank Ms, Ros.sH-ias a
bachelor's degree from the University of Arizorra and a w.aster's degree from
Rutgers Unwerstty.
During· her free tfme; Ms. Ros�i is a member of Red Rock Cmssing, an Anz.ona .
bluegrass trio kriown for lts off-t11e.:.1Jook. hannonies. Ms. Rossi ls married and has
one child. ·· · 
Contact Ms. Rossi by e-mail.



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Draft Minutes 

March 21, 2012 
Arizona Department of Water Resources 

Welcome/Opening Remarks 
Chairman Sandra Fabritz-Whitney welcomed the attendees. All 
members of the Authority were present except for Marshall P. 
Brown and ex-officio members, Senator Steve Pierce and 
Representative Andy Tobin. 

Approval of Minutes 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS 
Sandra Fabritz-Whitney, Chairman 
Maureen R. George, Vice--Chairrnan 
Lisa A. Atkins, Secretary 
Marshall P. Brown 
John Mawhinney 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
Senator Steve Pierce 
Representative Andy Tobin 

The Authority approved the minutes of the December 7, 2011 AWBA meeting. 

Water Banking Staff Activities 
Virginia O'Connell gave a brief summary of AWBA deliveries for 2011. She noted that 
deliveries totaled 136,576 acre-feet (AF), which included the delivery of 1,000 AF to the 
Southside Replenishment Bank. Ms. O'Connell reminded Commission members that 
the AWBA's 2011 Plan of Operation had identified a reduction in planned deliveries of 
11,659 AF to the Tonopah Desert Recharge Project as part of CAWCD's Inadvertent 
Overrun Payback Plan for a 2009 overrun. A letter confirming the reduction and the 
AWBA's ability to have stored that water was sent to the Bureau of Reclamation on 
March 8, 2012. Ms. O'Connell reviewed deliveries for 2012 and stated that deliveries 
through February were ahead of schedule. Total deliveries planned for 2012 are a little 
over 120 KAF. She also informed the Authority that all of the groundwater savings 
facility water storage agreements had now been fully executed. 

Ms. O'Connell provided an update on the AWBA website. She reminded the Authority 
that the website had been updated the previous year to conform to the State's uniform 
design. However, staff was not able to update the AWBA ledger page (water delivery 
data) at that time because it was written in programming language that was no longer 
supported. Ms. O'Connell noted that she is working with ADWR staff on revising the 
webpage so that the information can be easily accessed by the public. A version of the 
webpage may be available for review by the June meeting. 

Dave Johnson provided an update on the status of Indian settlement discussions. He 
noted that Senator Kyl had introduced a bill on the Navajo/Hopi Little Colorado River 
Settlement on February 14, 2012. The proposed settlement identifies an annual firming 
obligation of 6,411 AF shared equally between the AWBA and the Secretary. Mr. 
Johnson noted that the State also entered into settlement negotiations with the 
Hualapai Tribe. Any proposed firming obligations will be within the amounts remaining 
from the 8,724 AF identified in the Arizona Water Settlements Act (AWSA). John 
Mawhinney inquired if the Navajo/Hopi settlement identifies a funding mechanism for 
the AWBA for meeting the firming obligation. Tim Henley responded that it did not 
because the firming obligation is a commitment already identified under the AWSA. Mr. 
Mawhinney pointed out that the Legislature provided $13.5 million to the AWBA to 
assist in meeting those obligations of which $12.4 million was later swept. 



Discussion of Possible Storage of Nevada's Unused Apportionment in Arizona in 

2012 
Ms. O'Connell informed the Authority that staff had been having discussions with the 
Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA), ADWR, and CAWCD on the Second 
Amended Interstate Banking Agreement as a prelude to when SNWA's payments of 
$23 million resume in 2015. During these discussions, SNWA identified a potential for 
storing Nevada's unused apportionment in Arizona in 2012. They indicated they may 
have up to 60kaf available in 2012 and could have water available for the next few 
years. Ms. O'Connell pointed out that the Storage and Interstate Release Agreement 
{SIRA) allows for the storage of Nevada's water by the AWBA if it is for the benefit of 
Nevada. She noted that because it did not seem likely that the current Interstate 
agreement would be amended in time to allow for the storage of water in 2012, the 
group subsequently focused their discussions on storing Nevada's unused 
apportionment in 2012 through another letter agreement. 

Ms. O'Connell reminded the Authority that the Second Amended Interstate Banking 
Agreement had been modified by letter agreement in December of 2010. That 
modification defered AWBA storage on behalf of SNWA and also pushed back SNWA's 
payments of $23 million by 6 years until 2015. The agreement was modified at that 
time because there was no Excess CAP water to store for interstate purposes and the 
elevation in Lake Mead was very low. It appeared that the Lower Basin States could be 
facing their first shortage and it was decided that leaving the water in Lake Mead would 
be more beneficial for Colorado River operations. SNWA was also focused on 
installing the third intake into Lake Mead. She commented that conditions have since 
changed. Because of the previous year's snowpack, elevations have increased and 
shortages have been pushed back a few years. 

Ms. O'Connell pointed out that SNWA has water available and would like to store it in 
Arizona for its benefit, however they do not have the funding available in their budget 
for storage at this time because the funds are being used to complete the third intake. 
There are also no funds available in the Resource Subaccount in the Arizona Water 
Banking Fund. She noted that one possibility for addressing the funding problem could 
be the Maricopa 4-cent tax monies that are held by CAWCD. The group had 
discussions about concepts that could be included in the letter agreement such as: 

• The cost to SNWA for the Bank storing the water (which could be the cost of
storage plus the cost of money or a negotiated price);

• Use of the 4-cent tax;

• The terms for SNWA to pay the agreed upon costs (how and when the 4-cent
tax would be replaced);

• The terms for how the credits would accrue in the SNWA subaccount (the
credits could vest in the SNWA subaccount when the 4-cent tax has been repaid
or there could be other options not discussed by the group; the group also
discussed if there should be a 5% cut to the credits to benefit Arizona).

2 



Ms. O'Connell commented that the parties are still discussing the proposed concepts, 
including whether certain aspects of the concepts are consistent with the Law of the 
River and CAWCD's authorities to use the 4-cent tax. She noted that she had received 
an email from ADWR shortly before the meeting regarding this issue and read the email 
to Commission members. 

Recently, representatives of ADWR, AWBA, CAWCD and SNWA met to discuss the 
potential for direct delivery of approximately 60,000 acre-feet of Nevada's annual 
entitlement of Colorado River water to Arizona for interstate banking under the SIRA. In 
the most recent discussions, CA WCD would fund the storage and the credits would be 
treated as long-term storage credits in an AWBA account for Arizona's use. Upon 
SNWA's request and payment for the credits, 95% of the credits would be transferred to 
SNWA's interstate storage account and 5% of the credits would remain in the AWBA 
account. If SNWA does not make the request or submit the payment, the full amount of 
credits may remain in the A WBA account. 

The Department does not yet have a position on this concept currently being discussed 
because it needs additional time to consider whether retaining a portion of Nevada's 
Colorado River water in Arizona on a permanent basis through interstate banking is 
consistent with the Law of the River. Arizona has long opposed the sale of a portion of 
one state's annual allocation to a water user in another state and maintained that it would 
be inconsistent with the Decree in Arizona v. California. While this may not be a clear-cut 
sale of Nevada's entitlement for Arizona dollars, it would at least raise concerns about a 
conflict with the Decree. The Department intends to develop a position within the very 
near future. 

Chairman Fabritz-Whitney noted that ADWR is still reviewing this issue. Lisa Atkins 
inquired if there was a time frame for the letter agreement. Ms. O'Connell responded 
that even though a specific time frame has not been established, the AWBA's ability to 
store the water could diminish over time due to operational constraints, i.e. delivery and 
storage capacity availability. Mr. Mawhinney asked what the concerns were with regard 
to the Law of the River. Nicole Klobas responded that the additional five percent cut in 
credits could be perceived as a "sale" of Nevada's water to Arizona. Mr. Mawhinney 
inquired if there were any other down sides. Mr. Henley pointed out that if Nevada 
cannot use its water, it would become unused apportionment and be reallocated at the 
discretion of the Secretary. It could be distributed equally between Arizona and 
California. In Arizona it would become water that is available to all users. Maureen 
George inquired what the 4-cent tax would be used for if it were not used for this 
purpose. Ms. O'Connell responded that it would remain in the account. Tom Mccann 
added that the use of the 4-cent tax is identified each year by resolution, which has 
changed over the years becoming less specific. CAWCD can use the funds for 
repayment of Project construction costs or for operation, maintenance, and 
replacement costs. Water storage by the AWBA has historically been included in the 
resolution. He commented that it could potentially be used for Indian firming and/or 
purchasing a water supply for non-traditional firming (reliability). Ms. George inquired if 
there was a deadline for reimbursing the 4-cent tax account. Ms. O'Connell responded 
that the 4-cent tax account would be reimbursed when SNWA resumes payment of the 
$23 million in 2015. Ms. George stated that she may want a written opinion of the Law 
of the River issues. 

3 



John Entsminger, representing SNWA, commented that the parties would work through 
any potential issues regarding the Law of the River. He noted that Nevada wou Id also 
find the sale of water problematic. However he did not believe that the five percent cut 
should be considered a sale. SNWA is familiar with transaction costs because Nevada 
state law requires a 15 percent cut. This makes storage in Arizona a better deal for 
SNWA. Mr. Entsminger noted that the Imperial Irrigation District (11D) had already put in 
a request for additional water, therefore timing is an issue. SNWA is still very interested 
in discussions regarding its overall agreement with the AWBA; the letter agreement was 
needed in order to move quickly with storage in 2012. He added that when SNWA 
originally entered into the agreement for 1 .25 MAF of credits, they did not anticipate 
that Nevada would have unused apportionment. Likewise, Arizona did not foresee 
using its full 2.8 MAF. SNWA anticipates having approximatley 300 KAF of water 
available over the next five years and would like to store that water in Arizona. 
Chairman Fabritz-Whitney inquired if that storage would be part of the agreement. Ms. 
O'Connell responded that the credits accrued from that storage would be applied to the 
AWBA's 1.25 MAF obligation to SNWA. Chairman Fabritz-Whitney noted that 11D has 
incurred an Inadvertent Overrun because of issues with the Salton Sea and that she 
has concerns that they would use Nevada's unused apportionment as payback. Kathy 
Ferris, representing AMWUA, commented that they wanted more time to consider if this 
was a legal use of the 4-cent tax. They would like to evaluate the benefits and potential 
risks of using the funds in this manner, as well as the use of these funds for other 
purposes. Ms. Ferris also asked that AMWUA be given the opportunity to comment as 
the process moves forward. 

Staff was directed to continue discussions with the group on this issue and to provide 
Commission members with several potential meeting dates in the event a special 
meeting is needed. 

Distribution of AWBA Long-term Storage Credits during Shortages 
Tim Henley noted that the workgroup has been continuing its discussions on the 
conceptual IGA between ADWR, CAWCD and AWBA that was provided at the AWBA's 
meeting in December. Information Briefs have been developed for two of the issues 
identified in that IGA and more briefing papers will follow. He reviewed the first 
Information Brief, Capping the Distribution of AWBA Long-term Storage Credits for M&/ 
Firming during Shortages, regarding the issue of whether AWBA credits should be 
limited to a maximum of 20% of the total M&I subcontract entitlement. Mr. Henley noted 
that the AWBA is required to distribute long-term storage credits (credits) accrued with 
4-cent tax monies to CAWCD to the extent necessary to meet the demands of M&I
subcontractors during declared shortages or outages on the CAP aqueduct. Since the
term "to the extent necessary" is not defined by statute, it is up to the AWBA to define
the term.

Mr. Henley provided background information on the 20% cap for M&I firming, noting 
that when the AWBA was established in 1996 there was very little information on how 
many credits would be needed to firm M&I supplies. Because of limited information on 
water supplies, storage capacity, and costs, the AWBA made the decision to limit M&I 
firming to 20% for planning purposes. This decision was based primarily on the fact 
that under the Assured Water Supply rules, a municipal provider can apply for a 
drought exemption that would allow the replacement of up to 80% of its surface water 

4 



supplies with groundwater when no more than 80% of its surface water supply is 
available, thus allowing the provider to pump groundwater and remain consistent with 
AMA management goal requirements. Given the unknowns at that time, the AWBA 
determined that the State should only spend monies to accrue credits for that portion of 
demand that was limited by the Assured Water Supply rules and therefore based its 
modeling assumptions on a firming goal of 20%. The current shortage analysis using 
the rule curve shows that under the first two of the three shortage steps (400KAF and 
500 KAF), shortages to a CAP M&I subcontractor's supply would not be greater than 
20% of its CAP subcontract entitlement. The model shows that this would occur under 
the third shortage step (600 KAF), although the probability is low. The average 
probability that a reduction to the CAP M&I supply greater than 20% would occur is 
approximately 6% in any given year after 2043. Shortages at this level are not 
anticipated prior to 2044. Increasing the AWBA goal to firm the full CAP M&I 
subcontract reduction would require the accrual of approximately 126,000 AF of 
additional credits for M&I firming. At the AWBA's current average storage costs, the 
credits would cost approximately $16 million. 

Mr. Henley commented that in addition to requiring additional credits to firm more than 
the 20%, several other issues arise that need to be considered; (1) the AWBA currently 
is not projected to meet its M&I firming goal in the Tucson area, (2) increasing the 
potential recovery obligation by an additional 29,000 AF in any year could impact the 
cost and opportunities when developing a recovery plan, (3) even during the largest 
reduction to the CAP supply, CAP subcontractors would still be getting, including AWBA 
firming, approximately 95% of their CAP M&I subcontract entitlement, (4) most CAP 
M&I subcontractors have the ability to absorb a 5% reduction when there is only a 6% 
probability of that occurring, (5) by maintaining the 20% limit, credits could become 
available to firm up to 20% of surface water supply shortages that are not associated 
with the Central Arizona Project such as the SalWerde system, and (6) a 20% 
maximum firming limit does not preclude the AWBA from accruing additional credits for 
M&I firming if water and funding were available. 

Mr. Henley noted that because of these issues and the AWBA's requirement to fulfill its 
other obligations, staff suggests that the AWBA develop a policy that establishes a 20% 
cap on the amount of credits that are distributed for M&I firming in any shortage year. 
He pointed out however that this was not a final recommendation at this time. Staff is 
looking for input and direction on the issue. He reminded the Authority that the policy 
would not be a guarantee that 20% of a CAP M&I subcontractor's entitlement will be 
firmed because the actual firming amount will be based on credit availability. He stated 
that staff also suggests that the AWBA may want to revisit the policy in the future when 
there is additional information on shortage operations and credit availablility. Ms. 
George inquired if the AWBA would firm less than 20% based on the severity of the 
shortage. Mr. Henley clarified that the AWBA's firming responsibility would' not be 20% 
for each shortage year, but rather whatever the firming amount actually is up to 20%. 
Mr. Mawhinney asked to whom the Information Brief's were distributed. Ms. O'Connell 
responded that they were distributed to all individuals on the AWBA email list and also 
posted to the AWBA's webpage. Mr. Mawhinney reiterated for clarification that the 
decision about the amount of credits distributed remains with the AWBA and that the 
proposed policy would commit no more than 20% in any year. Beth Miller representing 
Scottsdale noted that Commission member Marshall Brown will be providing comments 

5 



on the briefing papers. Kathy Ferris inquired who developed the briefing papers. Staff 
responded that they were developed by the credit distribution workgroup. Ms. Ferris 
inquired further if there was consensus among that group. Mr. Henley responded that 
there was. The group. reviewed the draft papers before they were provided for 
discussion at today's meeting. Dee Fuerst representing CAWCD commented that there 
was not consensus among the group; CAWCD staff agrees with some points but not all 
of them. The Commission members pointed out that these papers were for the 
development of AWBA policies. 

Mr. Henley reviewed the second Information Brief, Reducing the Amount of AWBA

Long-term Storage Credits Distributed for M&I Firming during Shortages to Extend 
Credits for Future Years. He noted that this paper arose from a question posed at the 
last meeting on whether there should be a mandatory 5% cut for conserving credits. 
The objective was to look at options for extending AWBA credits into the future, 
primarily in the Tucson AMA. Mr. Henley pointed out that the current 20% limit 
assumption serves this purpose to some extent because the AWBA would be 
preserving the credits that would be used during times when reductions to CAP M&I 
subcontracts are greater than 20% (Avg. 6% probability in any given year after 2043). 

Mr. Henley noted that the model indicates that the amount of credits the AWBA is 
projected to accrue will be sufficient to firm CAP M&I subcontracts in Maricopa and 
Pinal Counties for the 100-year firming period. This is not the case for Pima County. 
To insure that credits would be available for the full 100-year period, the 20% limit 
would need to be reduced to10%. The major impact of reducing the limit is that the 
CAP subcontractors would need to find other supplies to meet their needs for the 
difference. Additional groundwater pumping would not be an option because the 
drought exemption would not be available. It could also leave a significant quantity of 
credits unused in Maricopa and Pinal Counties. A question that arises is should the 
AWBA have different caps for the different counties? Mr. Henley pointed out that 
another option for extending credits would be to apply additional reductions to the CAP 
request at the time the request is made to the AWBA. If M&I subcontracts are firmed to 
96% rather than 100%, the AWBA could distribute credits to Pima County through the 
full 100-year period. Once again, doing this would provide no benefit to Maricopa and 
Pinal Counties. He stated that a concern with applying additional reductions over the 
20% cap is that the AWBA might be forcing some subcontractors to implement 
additional conservation measures. The Groundwater Code already caused CAP M&I 
subcontractors to reduce use and conserve groundwater. The additional reduction 
could also impact CAP M&I subcontractors differently with a greater impact to those 
with limited groundwater supplies. 

For several reasons, including that the 20% limit assumption already preserves credits, 
there is minimal benefit to Maricopa and Pinal Counties. Additional reductions could 
require more use of an M&I subcontractor's renewable supplies when credits are still 
available. Because CAP M&I subcontractors have developed drought management 
plans that already identify reductions in water use, staff did not feel that it was 
appropriate that the AWBA have a policy that adds an additional reduction over the 
assumed 20% at this time. As with the first Information Brief discussed, staff did 
suggest that the AWBA revisit this policy in the future after shortages have occurred 
and there is additional information on shortage operations and credit availability. 

6 



Mr. Mawhinney inquired if the AWBA had the authority to do this. Mr. Henley 
responded that it did. John Bodenchuk, representing Bureau of Reclamation, inquired 
which 100- year time frame was being used for M&I firming. Mr. Henley replied that it 
was 1997 to 2097. He then reviewed the AWBA Planning Scenarios Summary Sheet 
that compared the AWBA Base Case that assumes a 20% limit with the 10% cap and 
the 96% cap. He also identified all of the assumptions that were used to develop the 
Base Case. Val Danos asked how consistent the model was with CAWCD's. Mr. 
Henley commented that the model assumptions were the same, but that he did not 
know if other things were evaluated. 

Mr. Henley informed the Commission members of the workgroup's next steps. He 
noted that staff was wrestling with the issue of whether long-term storage credits should 
be accrued with firming water. Another issue concerns firming entitlements versus use. 
In most years entitlements equal use, but this is not always the case. The group was 
also planning a paper on how credits are requested and how they will be made 
available. These issues will likely be discussed at a meeting separate from the AWBA's 
quarterly meeting. 

Chairman Fabritz-Whitney noted that the development of potential AWBA policies 
would be an open public process. Staff was directed to post the Information Briefs on 
the AWBA website for public comment. The deadline for submitting comments would 
be three weeks before the next AWBA meeting in June. 

Components to be Included in AZ Department of Water Resources Cost of Services 
to the AWBA 
Ms. O'Connell noted that last year Commission members had requested that staff 
provide additional opportunity to discuss ADWR's Cost of Services to the AWBA before 
the Administrative Budget is adopted in June. She reviewed the staffing components of 
the Cost of Services, which included the Manager, Technical Administrator, a half-time 
attorney, a part-time accountant, and part-time as needed consulting services, and 
provided the duties and responsibilities for each. Staff recommendation was for 
keeping each of these positions in the Cost of Services and also contracting with a 
consultant that has expertise on Indian firming and interstate issues. Ms. O'Connell 
pointed out that in accordance with recent legislation, if any of the positions are filled 
with AZ State Retirement Services (ASRS) retirees, ADWR will remit a contribution for 
that position to ASRS, which is identified as the Alternative Contribution Rate (ACR). 
For Fiscal Year 2013, beginning July 1, the ACR is 8.64 percent and would be included 
in the Cost of Services. The other components discussed included ADWR Indirect 
Costs, which are charges for overhead, CAWCD Cost of Services, which includes an 
annual cost of $21,000 for providing technical services, and Other Expenses including 
travel, operating expenses and equipment. For the latter, staff recommended three in
state trips for the Manager, Technical Administrator and Attorney for anticipated 
interstate discussions and adequate operating expenses to meet the needs of AWBA 
daily operations such as webpage maintenance, mailings, teleconferencing, etc. No 
expenditures for equipment were anticipated. Ms. George noted that she would support 
contracting with a consultant until new staff is brought up to speed, but would want to 
revisit the need for a consultant the following year. She noted that new thoughts may 
not be developed if you rely on institutional knowledge. Chairman Fabritz-Whitney 
noted that Commission member Marshall Brown had requested that this agenda item 

7 



be delayed until the next meeting when he would be in attendance. Staff was directed 
to have the components included in the Cost of Services and to include it on the June 
meeting agenda for further discussion and potential action. 

Call to the Public 

There was no additional public comment. 

The meeting adjourned at 11 :25 a.m. 

8 



2012 DELIVERIES (by Month) 
Planned vs. Actual 

175 

I 150 ... 125 
100 

.,, i,.....--<� 
C 75 
� 50 / ,....--, 
0 

25 / ....,J 

0 • .--
jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep_ act nov dee 

Months 

Pinal AMA (by Month) 
Planned vs. Actual 

40 

oi 30 

< 20 

_g 10 

0 
jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep act nov dee 

Months 

2012 Plan of Operation 
INTRASTATE 

70 

60 
oi ., 50 u. 

---PLANNED (CUM) 2! 40 � 
..........., ACTUAL (CUM) 

'ti 30 

20 

10 

0 

60 

50 
-PLANNED 

=ACTUAL � 40 

-PLANNED (CUM) 30 
__._ACTUAL (CUM) 

20 

I- 10 

0 

Phoenix AMA (by Month) 
Planned vs. Actual 

jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep act nav dee 

Months 

,,:;; :,:;r-

#f 7i Ill .., 

Tucson AMA (by Month) 
Planned vs. Actual 

-� 
--_a-

--

.., - - -

..,.-1111 

■ 

jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nav dee 

Months 

-PLANNED 

=ACTUAL 

-PLANNED (CUM) 

__._ACTUAL (CUM) 

-PLANNED 

=ACTUAL 

-PLANNED (CUM) 

__._ACTUAL (CUM) 



Actual deliveries updated 15-Jun-12 
Plan of Operation 7-Dec-11 jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov dee total 

Phoenix AMA 

TONOPAH DESERT 13,414 16,005 16,933 463 0 0 a 0 a 0 a 0 46,815 
4,000 4,000 8,000 7,000 412 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23,412 

NMIDD 1,013 0 3,128 1,999 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,140 
0 0 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 2,000 0 0 30,000 

QCID 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 175 1,343 2,285 1,142 1,143 1,142 7,230 

SUPERSTITION MTNS 0 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 
0 1,000 1,000 1,000 350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,350 

Subtotal 14,427 17,005 20,061 2,462 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 53,955 
Total lo dale 14,427 31,432 51,493 53,955 53,955 53,955 53,955 53,955 53,955 53,955 53,955 53,955 53,955 
Projected tolal to date 4,000 9,000 22,000 34,000 38,762 42,762 46,762 50,762 54,762 56,762 56,762 56,762 63,992 

Pinal AMA 

CAIDD 0 0 a 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 500 1,500 1,500 4,170 1,000 0 0 0 8,670 

MSIDD 510 1,020 1,330 1,440 1,440 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,740 
508 636 1,589 1,335 1,335 636 318 318 571 500 670 254 8,670 

HIDD 0 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 a 0 0 0 0 
734 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 734 734 734 734 3,670 

Southside Bank 0 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 
1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 

Subtotal 510 2,020 1,330 1,440 1,440 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,740 
Total to date 510 2,530 3,860 5,300 6,740 6,740 6,740 6,740 6,740 6,740 6,740 6,740 6,740 
Projected total to date 2,242 2,878 4,467 5,802 7,637 9,773 11,591 16,079 18,384 19,618 21,022 22,010 22,010 

Tucson AMA 

AVRA VALLEY" 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 260 670 670 1,600 

CAVSARP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SAVSARP 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 
2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 1,000 2,000 2,000 15,000 

LOWER SANTA CRUZ 2,731 3,194 3,405 1,531 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,861 
2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 2,000 1,000 0 700 13,700 

CMID 0 0 0 0 400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 400 
0 0 0 500 500 500 500 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 

BKWFARMS 0 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 
0 0 100 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 

KAI FARMS - Red Rock 0 0 0 0 1,178 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,178 
0 0 0 500 500 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,500 

Subtotal 4,731 5,194 5,605 3,531 3,578 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22,639 
Total to date 4,731 9.925 15,530 19.061 22,639 22,639 22.639 22.639 22,639 22,639 22,639 22,639 22,639 
Projected total to date 4,000 4,000 4,100 5,100 5,000 1,000 500 0 2,000 2,260 2,670 3,370 34,000 

TOTAL 19,668 24,219 26,996 7,433 5,018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 83,334 
Total to date 19,668 43,887 70,883 78,316 83,334 83,334 83,334 83,334 83,334 83,334 83,334 83,334 83,334 
Projected total to date 10,242 15,878 30,567 44,902 51,399 53,535 58,853 66,841 75,146 78,640 80,454 82,142 120,002 



Agenda Number 7.b.i.c. 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

CENTRAL ARIZONA WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
REGARDING AD VALOREM TAX FOR WATER STORAGE 

Attachment. 

�--:,,;,'\,. (June 7, 2012) � 
-�:-��·t:�·•,-_ .. ,.

_ 
"'·�,,�,,

WHEREAS, House Bill 2494 adopted by the Arizona LegJ4tatu�iJ?�ijf,; 

Laws of Arizona 1996, Forty-second Legislature, Seconclf
�:lar <

[�si�··· "'- .. st;ablished the
, "¼_•,,;:;., A,::1· \:;/ 

Arizona Water Bank and amended A.R.S. § 48-3715.02 �,�fM�
t
!�x �£��f�r water storage;

and 
{/f�i"'.:-- '\�����:;'l"lq�

;;
/

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 48-3715.02, sa��!�J�ij�)r:gt���\/h,1he Board of Directors (the

"Board") of the Central Arizona Waty_.!(<®-.}}"'$..e���µ,D1\tJ ��h�,;'District") shall fix the amount 
/t ,; :}' . .  . -�t· '\="�>�- ��=:) 

to be raised by direct taxation pmjµ_ant to its P{9yisT'§�s, which amount shall not exceed four 
.4ft� �r }\ \:;1� 

cents per one hundred d�'..6'f ass�-�" . Y!lu_�}i�f and
-r-.�.�f··s> A�? ·-.-��:r�3;�7·-·

WHEREAS, th�t��rd hji!�§eparate action has fixed the tax rate pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-
·�- �?:::,_ ·. -... .. �} .• �;,{; :"·.-·· 

Ltf--�. 
3715.02, subs��1ft"�\�;!�r1i(�t�?lZ�jiH3 tax year at four cents per one hundred dollars of

-�,·_;;:, Jc �if"'·
assessed valuati-Oh,;. aq.�.;,.:/ �· 

_;Jf:r2r�. '·�hit 
1;t::?WHEREAS,"�,ll.S. § 48-3715.03 further provides that the Board shall determine 

. \\\, -·«"ft]�t!:b, 'f4'.1} 
annua.Tl'¥"'·;fJy resolili.t\on whether any or all of the tax levied pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-3715.02, 

/:,._ __ 4f? 
subsections•ll{1lnt\f C, shall be applied to the repayment of the construction costs of the Central 

Arizona Project ("CAP" or the "Project") or to the annual operation, maintenance, and 

replacement costs of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 48-3715.03 further provides that those monies specified in such 



resolution for repayment of the construction costs or payment of the annual operation, 

maintenance, and replacement costs of the Project shall be deposited m the District fond 

established pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-3712, subsection A, paragraph 5; and 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 48-3715.03 further provides that a certified copy of such resolution 

shall be delivered to the Arizona Department of Water Resources; 
, .. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of,�,����-l:�
\. __ Central

Arizona Water Conservation District, as follows: 
.· 
/lf' �¾��:�,��:f;�} 

A-::.:· 
� 1. That all of the taxes levied pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-371�!�,�' spl,i;�tions �\�d C, in

d�' , \,;�t�-:.. /:_,,� �� _...,,, 

the 2012-2013 tax year shall be applied to repayment offl(��pst�(�m cos!��lpayment of
\; -�� '-\./! .. ,.,., '\!/;.:�" ,.�� �·; •. 

the annual operation, maintenance, and replacem�p� costs �1i\1�l��j�'b¾��""
c.·'" .;•.;•���':;,,, \�(. -�� �-�. -�--

2. That all taxes levied pursuant to A.R
(:

�- §!��!Zl;�t�!�sf.bse\,ions B and C, in the 2012-

2013 tax year be deposited in a designated'Zs�"�trici(aQ261t1ii�� the District fund established 
...... __ "'.¥-:·:£ "\ ��:�>, ��

.:

· 
pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-3712, subs�Qtion(�, paragr:;:iph''§rtP. be used by the District to defray 

/,  _',f '\, -H:, ',;.,-. 
annual operation, maintenance, and*�placement f91Sts��r}d

1-,_,.1.•·( ,- ·: . .1, 
• 

3. That a certified copx.�fthis"�s..olution be\dtlivered to the Arizona Department of Water
Resources. /<t��\/ _./'

f
.'¾'Z:l:�'.'.:·l)�-;D

;;:

/f: '.:,;:z;<{ 4,;:,> 
I, t�e{�?ersigg;�, a� S��¢gry of the Central Arizona Wate� Conservation District,

hereby ce_r.t:1fy ffi�Jhe;-foregomg 1s a true and correct copy of the resolutions duly adopted by the 
Boarqd1';6::�ftector§(l�jhe Central Arizona Water Conservation District at a meeting thereof, duly 
ca11�:f4iil'nd hel9,,qu_Ju1fitt:Z, 2012, at which a quorum was present and acting throughout. I further 
�erti�t!M:�f1�jtlttef��utr'5rts have not been modified or revoked since their adoption and are still
m full force and ef(f�t.�·--t, 

s1d�11:�1s J1h DAY OF JUNE 2012.

By: _____________ _ 
Timothy R. Bray 
Secretary 



Arizona State Treasurer's Office 
Calculation of Interest Earnings for Water 

Banking Authority 
Reinvestment Method 

For Period of June 27, 2005 thru May 31, 2012 

Pool3 
Monthly Days in Days in Earnings for 

Month Invested Amount Yield Month Year Period 
June 2005 26,000,000.00 3.1172% 4 365 8,881.88 
July2005 26,008,881.88 3.2014% 31 365 70,718.08 
August 2005 26,079,599.96 3.4005% 31 365 75,320.39 
September 2005 26,154,920.35 3.5475% 30 365 76,261.30 
October 2005 26,231,181.65 3.6669% 18 365 47,434.74 
October 2005 100,231,181.65 3.6669% 13 365 130,903.85 
November 2005 100,409,520.24 3.8494% 30 365 317,684.72 
December 2005 100,727,204.96 3.9975% 31 365 341,982.66 
January 2006 101,069,187.62 4.1374% 31 365 355,152.69 
February 2006 101,424,340.31 4.4543% 28 365 346,566.69 
March 2006 101,770,907.00 4.3770% 31 365 378,328.47 
April 2006 102,149,235.47 4.5526% 30 365 382,228.45 
May 2006 102,531,463.92 4.6378% 31 365 403,866.66 
June 2006 102,935,330.58 4.8013% 30 365 406,211.02 
July 2006 103,341,541.60 4.9615% 31 365 435,468.52 
August 2006 103,777,010.11 5.0202% 31 365 442,477.31 
September 2006 104,219,487.42 5.0989% 30 365 436,771.02 
October 2006 104,656,258.44 5.0423% 31 365 448,190.57 
November 2006 105,104,449.01 5.1630% 30 365 446,017.21 
December 2006 105,550,466.22 5.1279% 31 365 459,693.68 
January 2007 106,010,159.90 5.1560% 31 365 464,225.75 
February 2007 106,474,385.65 5.3508% 28 365 437,047.89 
March 2007 106,911,433.54 5.1622% 31 365 468,735.46 
April 2007 107,380,169.00 5.2452% 30 365 462,929.15 
May2007 107,843,098.15 5.1578% 31 365 472,417.18 
June 2007 108,315,515.33 5.2323% 30 365 465,813.10 
July 2007 108,781 ,328.43 5.1575% 31 365 476,499.47 
August 2007 109,257,827.90 5.1863% 31 365 481,259.18 
September 2007 109,739,087.08 5.2974% 30 365 477,806.99 
October 2007 110,216,894.07 5.1597% 31 365 482,993.68 
November 2007 110,699,887.75 5.0624% 30 365 460,608.59 
December 2007 111, 160,496.34 4.8656% 31 365 459,362.68 
January 2008 111,619,859.02 4.7045% 31 365 445,988.61 
February 2008 112,065,847.63 4.6296% 29 365 412,213.19 
March 2008 112,478,060.82 4.2184% 31 365 402,980.85 
April 2008 112,881,041.67 4.6153% 30 365 428,202.63 
May2008 113,309,244.30 3.2147% 31 365 309,367.45 
June 2008 113,618,611.76 3.1245% 30 365 291,781.93 
July 2008 113,910,393.69 3.2197% 31 365 311,492.50 
August 2008 114,221,886.19 3.6129% 31 365 350,488.76 
September 2008 114,572,374.95 2.9316% 30 365 276,066.06 
October 2008 114,848,441.01 2.1843% 31 365 213,062.11 
November 2008 115,061 ,503.12 2.1190% 30 365 200,396.16 



December 2008 115,261,899.28 1.5987% 31 365 156,502.61 
January 2009 115,418,401.88 1.4354% 31 365 140,707.36 
February 2009 115,559,109.25 1.6489% 28 365 146,171.83 
March 2009 107, 140,365.07 1.4974% 31 365 136,257.30 
April 2009 107,276,622.37 1.4366% 30 365 126,668.71 
May2009 107,403,291.08 0.6979% 31 365 63,661.90 
June 2009 107,466,952.99 0.7880% 30 365 69,603.25 
July 2009 107,536,556.24 1.0800% 31 365 98,639.01 
August 2009 102,235, 195.25 0.8400% 31 365 72,937.11 
September 2009 102,308, 132.36 0.7500% 30 365 63,066.66 
October 2009 102,371,199.02 1.0800% 31 365 93,901.03 
November 2009 102,465,100.05 0.9500% 30 365 80,007.00 
December 2009 102,545,107.05 0.7600% 31 365 66,190.76 
January 2010 102,611,297.81 0.7600% 31 365 66,233.48 
February 2010 101,992,831.29 0.7700% 28 365 60,245.63 
March 2010 102,053,076.92 0.8300% 31 365 71,940.43 
April 2010 102,125,017.35 0.8900% 30 365 74,705.15 
May 2010 97,199,722.50 0.9700% 31 365 80,076.59 
June 2010 97,279,799.09 0.8900% 30 365 71,160.84 
July 2010 97,350,959.93 0.8000% 31 365 66,145.31 
August 2010 97,417, 105.24 0.7800% 31 365 64,535.50 
September 2010 97,481,640.74 0.7400% 30 365 59,290.20 
October 2010 97,540,930.94 0.8000% 31 365 66,274.39 
November 2010 97,607,205.33 0.6900% 30 365 55,355.32 
December 2010 97,662,560.65 0.7300% 31 365 60,550.79 
January 2011 97,723,111.43 0.6200% 31 365 51,458.58 
February 2011 97,774,570.01 0.6800% 28 365 51,003.50 
March 2011 97,825,573.52 0.7400% 31 365 61,482.70 
April 2011 97,887,056.22 0.6500% 30 365 52,295.82 
May 2011 97,939,352.04 0.6800% 31 365 56,563.33 
June 2011 97,995,915.37 0.6700% 30 365 53,964.87 
July 2011 98,049,880.25 0.5800% 31 365 48,299.64 
August 2011 98,098, 179.89 0.8000% 31 365 66,653.01 
September 2011 98,164,832.90 0.9200% 30 365 74,228.75 
October 2011 98,239,061.65 0.9200% 31 365 76,761.04 
November 2011 98,315,822.69 0.9400% 30 365 75,959.07 
December 2011 98,391,781.76 0.9000% 31 365 75,209.06 
January 2012 98,466,990.82 0.8300% 31 365 69,412.48 
February 2012 98,536,403.31 1.0500% 29 365 82,203.66 
March 2012 98,618,606.97 1.1000% 31 365 92,134.10 
April 2012 98,710,741.06 1.0200% 30 365 82,754.76 
May2012 98,793,495.82 1.0600% 31 365 88,941.21 

Total Earnings 18,532,053.03 

Shown below are the dates and amounts for the Legislative Sweeps from the NV Resource Account. 

Month Amount 

February 2009 8,564,916.00 
July 2009 5,400,000.00 
January 2010 684,700.00 
April 2010 5,000,000.00 



Comments on March 21, 2012 ABWA Information Briefs 

At the March 21, 2012 AWBA meeting, two briefing papers were distributed regarding 
distribution of long-term storage credits during shortages. Stakeholders were asked to 
provide comments by May 30, 2012. Comments were provided by five organizations: 

• Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
• Arizona Municipal Water Users Association
• City of Tucson
• City of Mesa
• City of Phoenix

Comments are summarized below without attribution. The comments can be 
categorized into three groups. Specific comments are available upon request. 

20% cap on Entitlements: 

• Support policies extending the availability of credits for the full duration of any
expected shortage.

• Will not likely object to a lower cap in order to extend credits out into the future.
• Support limiting the transfer of M&I firming credits during a shortage to 20% of M&I

entitlements consistent with original assumptions used by AWBA in setting M&I
firming goals.

• Do not provide more than 20% of the entitlements for subcontractors in the Phoenix
or Pinal AMAs.

Comprehensive Stakeholder Process: 

• Premature to consider reducing or capping the use of AWBA credits during
shortages outside a comprehensive process to guide the development of a recovery
plan.

• Need to recognize and define the interrelationships and authorities of AWBA,
ADWR, CAWCD and USBR relating to shortage, recovery and firming.

• Any process needs to provide meaningful consideration of stakeholder positions.
Need to incorporate Indian firming at the same time as M&I firming.

Tucson AMA Firming Goal: 

• Efforts to reach the existing firming goal in the Tucson AMA must continue.
• All options to achieving firming goals in the Tucson AMA have not been exhausted;

until this issue has been resolved, it is premature to preserve credits in the Tucson
AMA.



Information Brief 

Meeting Date: 

Subject: 

Description: 

Background: 

Analysis: 

March 21, 2012 

Capping the Distribution of AWBA Long-term Storage Credits for M&I Firming 

during Shortages 

Should the AWBA limit its credit distribution for M&I firming during times of a 
Secretarial declared shortage of Colorado River Water or a Central Arizona 
Project disruption to a maximum of 20% of the total M&I subcontract entitlement? 

The AWBA is required to distribute long-term storage credits accrued with four

cent tax monies to CAWCD to the extent necessary to meet the demands of the 
M&I subcontractors and it may distribute long-term storage credits accrued with 
the withdrawal fees under the same circumstances. The statute does not define 
what "to the extent necessary" means so it is up to the AWBA to define that term. 

When the AWBA was first established in 1996 there was a question about how 

many credits would be needed for future M&I subcontract firming. Modeling of 
that era showed there was the potential for many shortage occurrences with 
several being quite severe. The water supply, available storage capacity other 
than Groundwater Savings Facilities (GSFs) and the cost, recovery capacity and 
cost, and funding availability were also unknown. Based on the available 
information, the AWBA made the decision that for planning purposes, 
determination of the need for M&I firming would be limited to 20% of the M&I 
subcontract amount in any year. This decision was made primarily on the fact 
that the Assured Water Supply rules allow a drought exemption for municipal 
providers. The drought exemption allows a provider to replace up to 80% of a 
surface water supply with groundwater without impacting the groundwater 
allowance in a year when no more than 80% of the surface water supply is 
available. What this means is that a provider can apply for a drought exemption 
and after approval by ADWR, pump groundwater to meet all but 20% of its lost 
CAP subcontract water. The AWBA determined, recognizing the unknowns and 
wanting to limit the State's exposure, that the State should only expend monies 
to create credits to meet that portion of demand that was limited by the Assured 
Water Supply Rules. Models were run, based on the 20% assumption and the 
probability of shortage, the AWBA established a goal of approximately 2.5 million 
acre-feet of firming for the CAWCD service area. A 20% reduction equals 
approximately 127,800 AF prior to 2044 and 137,200 AF after 2044 (Hohokam 
100 water conversion to M&I priority in 2044). Should the AWBA modify this 
assumption? 

Many things have changed since the AWBA made its initial analysis 15 years 
ago. First, the AWBA has been able to accrue approximately 1.8 million acre
feet of long term storage credits utilizing four-cent tax monies and approximately 
750,000 acre-feet of long term storage credits utilizing withdrawal fees. The way 
the Colorado River is operated has also changed. In 1996, shortages were 
determined based on a probability analysis. This analysis indicated shortage 



Observations: 

could occur early and often and that the volume of annual shortages could 

become fairly significant especially during periods of prolonged shortages. 

Today's operation is based on a rule curve. The rule curve has three steps for 

determining the quantity of the shortage. This analysis allows the volume of 

shortages to the M&I supply to be more predictable. While the total shortages 

are still unknown, the impact of a shortage to CAP M&I supplies can be better 

understood. 

The first two steps (400,000 AF and 500,000 AF) rarely if ever create the 

situation where shortages to the CAP subcontractors M&I supply is greater than 

20% of the CAP subcontractors M&I entitlements. That circumstance does occur 

when the 600,000 AF step (480,000 reduction to AZ) is declared by the 

Secretary. This situation does not occur prior to 2044 in any year in any trace. 

After 2043, when full utilization of CAP entitlements is expected, a 480,000 AF 

reduction to CAP will result in an average reduction to CAP M&I subcontract of 

approximately 166,000 AF in that year. The 166,000 AF reduction is 

approximately 29,000 AF greater than the firming amount available with a 20% 

firming limit. The average probability that a reduction to the CAP supply greater 

than 20% would occur is approximately 6% in any given year. Increasing the 

AWBA goal to firm the full CAP M&I subcontract reduction would require the 

accrual of approximately 126,000 AF of additional long-term storage credits for 

M&I firming. At the AWBA's current average storage costs, the credits would cost 

approximately $16 million. 

In addition to requiring additional long-term storage credits, several other issues 

arise; (1) the AWBA currently is not projected to meet its goal in the Tucson area 

with the 20% cap, (2) increasing the potential recovery obligation by an additional 

29,000 AF in any year could impact the cost and opportunities when developing 

a recovery plan, (3) even during the largest reduction, CAP subcontractors would 

still be getting, including AWBA firming, approximately 95% of their CAP M&I 

subcontract entitlement, (4) most CAP M&I subcontractors have the ability to 

absorb a 5% reduction when there is only a 6% probability of that occurring, (5) 

by not increasing the goal, water could become available to firm up to 20% of 

surface water supply shortages that are not associated with the Central Arizona 

Project i.e. SalWerde system, and (6) having the 20% cap does not preclude the 

AWBA from creating additional long-term storage credits for M&I firming if water 

and funding were available. 

Recognizing these issues and current AWBA obligations to firm Indian settlement 

water, create 1.25 MAF of long-term storage credits for Nevada, and the need to 

develop a recovery plan, the staff suggests that the AWBA create a policy 

establishing a 20% cap on the amount of credits distributed in any year for CAP 

subcontract firming. This cap would be consistent with the cap already in place 

for the firming of other surface water supplies. This policy is not a guarantee that 

20% of the CAP M&I subcontractors entitlement will be firmed. The actual firming 

is dependent on the amount of long-term storage credits available to the AWBA. 

The AWBA may want to revisit this policy in the future after shortages have 

occurred and there is additional information on shortage operations and credit 

availability. 

2 



Information Brief 

Meeting Date: 

Subject: 

Issue: 

Description: 

Background: 

Analysis: 

March 21, 2012 

Reducing the Amount of AWBA Long-term Storage Credits Distributed for M&I 

Firming during Shortages to Extend Credits for Future Years 

Should The AWBA reduce the amount of credits it will distribute in any year to 

extend its long-term storage credits for future years. 

The AWBA is required to distribute long-term storage credits accrued with four

cent tax monies to CAWCD to the extent necessary to meet the demands of the 

M&I subcontractors and it may distribute long-term storage credits accrued with 
the withdrawal fees under the same circumstances. The statute does not define 

what "to the extent necessary" means so it is up to the AWBA to define that term. 

When the AWBA was first established in 1996 there was a question about how 

many credits would be needed for future M&I subcontract firming. At that time, 

the AWBA determined for various reasons, mainly cost and water availability 
concerns, that it would limit its firming goal for CAP M&I subcontracts to 20% of 
the CAP M&I subcontract entitlements. Should the AWBA reduce the amount of 

the long-term storage credits it will distribute for M&I firming during shortages so 
that more credits are available further into the future? 

The AWBA's current 20% limit assumption to some extent serves this purpose. 

Modeling would indicate that there is a 6% probability that the actual reduction to 

CAP M&I subcontractors could be greater than 20%. By maintaining this 

assumption the AWBA is preserving long-term storage credits for future years. 

The question arises, however, are the long-term storage credits projected to be 
accumulated by the AWBA for CAP M&I subcontract firming going to be sufficient 

to firm those subcontracts for the 100-year firming period. Based on the 

modeling, this is only an issue for Pima County. In order to insure long-term 
storage credits would be available for the full 100-year period for Pima County 

the 20% limit could be reduced to a 10% limit. The major impact of reducing the 

limit on the long-term storage credits the AWBA would make available during 
shortages is CAP subcontractors would need to find other supplies to meet their 

needs for the difference between the � 0% cap and the 20% cap. Additional 
groundwater pumping would not be an option because the drought exemption 

would not be available. It could also leave a significant quantity of long-term 
storage credits unused in Maricopa and Pinal Counties. That raises a second 
question, should the AWBA have different caps for the different counties, leaving 

Maricopa and Pinal Counties at a 20% cap while reducing the cap in Tucson to 
10% as an example. This could raise equity issues especially if groundwater is 
not available to make up the difference. 



Observations: 

Another option for extending credits would be to apply additional reductions to 

the CAP request at the time the request is made to the AWBA. These reductions 

could be in effect until the 20% cap was reached at which time the 20% cap 

would come into play. After 2044, under maximum shortages to CAP, the 

subcontractor would be receiving approximately 76% of its entitlement, adding 

the 20% firming would increase this to approximately 96% of the subcontract 

entitlement. Recognizing the subcontractor would need to be planning for a 

reduction of 4% of their entitlement to cover this situation, the AWBA could 

reduce the distribution by 4% during other shortages. Applying this example to 

all three counties would have no benefit to Maricopa and Pinal Counties, but 

would allow the AWBA to distribute credits to Pima County through the full 100-

year period. Various percent reductions could be tested to determine the most 

appropriate amount. A variation of this option would be to apply different 

percentages in the different counties. 

One of the concerns with the AWBA applying additional reductions over the 20% 

cap are that the AWBA might be forcing some subcontractors to implement 

additional conservation measures. The groundwater code already caused CAP 

M&I subcontractors to reduce use and conserve groundwater. A major reason 

for these provisions in the Groundwater Code was to ensure that groundwater 

would be available for the future, including times of shortages. The additional 

reduction could impact CAP M&I subcontractors differently with a greater impact 

to those with limited groundwater supplies. 

Recognizing that the 20% limit assumption already preserves long-term storage 

credits, there is a minimal benefit to Maricopa and Pinal Counties, that additional 

reductions could require more use of an M&I subcontractor's renewable supplies 

when credits are still available, and that the CAP M&I subcontractors have also 

developed drought management plans that already identify reductions in water 

use, staff does not feel it is appropriate that the AWBA add an additional 

reduction over the assumed 20% to the amount of credits it will distribute in any 

given year for CAP M&I subcontract firming. However, staff does suggest that 

the AWBA revisit this policy in the future after shortages have occurred and there 

is additional information on shortage operations and credit availability. 

2 



Final Draft 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

ANNUAL REPORT 
2011 

1996 .. 

Submitted 

July 1, 2012 



Final Draft 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 

Annual Report 
2011 

Honorable Janice K. Brewer 

Governor of Arizona 

Members 

Sandra Fabritz-Whitney 
Chairman 

Maureen R. George 
Vice-chairman 

Lisa A. Atkins 
Secretary 

Marshalll P. Brown 
Member 

John Mawhinney 
Member 

Ex officio 
Senator Steve Pierce 

Representative Andy Tobin 



Final Draft 

Table of Contents 

,.�cronyms and Abbreviations ............................................................................................................ 2 

Summary ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

Annual Report Requirement .............................................................................................................. 5 

Organizational Chart .......................................................................................................................... 6 

Update 7 

Activities and Projects - 2011 ............................................................................................................ 9 

Monies Expended from the Banking Fund ..................................................................................... 15 

Long-term Storage Credits .............................................................................................................. 17 

Long-term Storage Credits Distributed or Extinguished by the Authority .................................. 22 

Ten-Year Plan .................................................................................................................................... 23 

Appendices ....................................................................................................................................... 31 



Final Draft 

List of Tables 

Table 2. Monies Collected and Expended through December 2011 ............................................ 16 

and Monies Remaining Available ..................................................................................... 16 

Table 3. Number and Location of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued in 2011 ........................ 17 

Table 4. Cumulative Total and Location of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued through 
December 2011 .................................................................................................................. 18 

Table 5. Identified Uses of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued through December 2011 and 
Percentage of AWBA Goals Achieved ............................................................................. 20 

Table 6a. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit .............. 21 

for Intrastate Storage ......................................................................................................... 21 

Table 6b. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit .............. 21 

for Storage on Behalf of Nevada ...................................................................................... 21 

Table 7. Ten-Year Plan ..................................................................................................................... 25 

Table 8. AWBA Percentage of Goals Achieved through 2022 ..................................................... 26 



Acronyms and Abbreviations 

''.\DWR Arizona Department of Water Resources 
Agreement to Firm Agreement to Firm Future Supplies executed February 4, 2005 

between the Arizona Water Banking Authority and the Mohave 
County Water Authority 

Amended Agreement to Firm Amended Agreement to Firm Future Supplies executed March 
17, 2010. 

AMA Active Management Area 
AWBA Arizona Water Bankina Authority 
AWB Fund Arizona Water Banking Fund 
AWSA Arizona Water Settlements Act 
CAGRD Central Arizona Groundwater Replenishment District 
CAP Central Arizona Project 
CAWCD Central Arizona Water Conservation District 
CRCN Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
Credits Long-term storage credits 
CRSS Colorado River System Simulation Model 
Decree Consolidated Decree of the United States Supreme Court in 

Arizona v. California 

GRIC Gila River Indian Community 
GRIIDD Gila River Indian Irrigation and Drainage District 
GSF Groundwater Savinas Facility 
ICUA Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment 
IGA Intergovernmental Agreement 
Inventory Storage Facility Inventory 
JLBC Joint Legislative Budget Committee 
Letter Amendment Letter Amendment to Second Amended Agreement for Interstate 

Bankina Aareement sianed December 9, 201 O 
• 

M&I Municipal and Industrial 
MAF Million Acre-feet 
Master Water Storage Water Storage Agreement between CAWCD and AWBA effected 
Agreement July 1, 2002 
MCWA Mohave County Water Authority 
MDWID Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District 
Metropolitan Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
NIA Non-Indian Agricultural 
NMIDD New Maama Irrigation and Drainaae District 
Plan Annual Plan of Operation 
Reclamation U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
Recovery Agreement Recovery Agreement executed June 9, 201 O among the Arizona 

Water Banking Authority, the Central Arizona Water 
Conservation District, the Southern Nevada Water Authority and 
the Colorado River Commission of Nevada 

Second Amended Agreement Second Amended Agreement for Interstate Water Banking 
signed April 1, 2009 between the Arizona Water Banking 
Authority and the Southern Nevada Water Authority and the 
Colorado River Commission of Nevada 

SMRP Superstition Mountains Recharae Project 
1NWA Southern Nevada Water Authority 

I 
SSRB Southside Replenishment Bank 
USF Underaround Storaae Facility 

2 



r 

Summary 

fhe Arizona Water Banking Authority (AWBA) was created in 1996 to store the unused portion of 
Arizona's annual allocation of Colorado River water. Until the AWBA was created, Arizona had not 
fully utilized its 2.8 million acre-foot (MAF) allocation of Colorado River water and the state's leaders 
recognized that leaving a portion of Arizona's allocation in the river was a lost opportunity. The 
AWBA was created to provide assurances that water users within the state had secure, long-term 
water supplies. 

The AWBA stores Colorado River water that would have otherwise been unused to accomplish the 
following goals: 

■ To firm (insure the availability of) water supplies for municipal and industrial users in the
Central Arizona Water Conservation District (CAWCD) service area and along the Colorado
River in times of shortages;

■ To fulfill the management plan objectives of the Arizona Groundwater Code;
■ To assist in the settlement of Indian water rights claims; and
■ To assist Nevada and California through interstate water banking.

Each year, the AWBA pays the water delivery and storage costs to bring Colorado River water into 
Central and Southern Arizona through the Central Arizona Project (CAP) canal. The water is either 
stored underground in aquifers (direct recharge) at underground storage facilities (USF) or is used by 
irrigation districts in lieu of pumping groundwater (indirect or in lieu recharge) at groundwater savings 
�acilities (GSF). The AWBA accrues a long-term storage credits that can be recovered and used in 
che future during times of a shortage in supply, either by Arizona or by Nevada. 

The funding for water storage that benefits Arizona (intrastate storage) comes from three sources. 
There are restrictions regarding the manner in which these funds can be expended based on the 
source of the monies, which currently include: 

■ Fees for groundwater pumping currently collected within the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson Active
Management Areas (AMA). These monies can only be used to benefit the AMA in which the
fees are collected.

■ A 4¢ ad valorem property tax collected in the three county CAWCD service area. These
monies can only be used to benefit the county in which the tax is levied.

■ A general fund appropriation received at the discretion of the Legislature.

In addition to these three sources of funding, an additional $8 million for intrastate storage was made 
available from the Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) pursuant to the Arizona-Nevada 
Shortage Sharing Agreement. This fund, referred to as the Shortage Reparation Fund, is intended to 
assist Arizona in storing water to offset impacts from Colorado River shortages that may occur during 
the Interim Period (2008 through 2026). In addition to the funding sources for intrastate storage, the 
AWBA also uses funds provided by Nevada pursuant to the Second Amended Agreement for 
Interstate Water Banking (Second Amended Agreement) to create credits for the benefit of Nevada. 

'n calendar year 2011, AWBA deliveries for recharge totaled 135,576 acre-feet and cost $16.5 million. 
rhe AWBA also paid $122,000 for the delivery of 1,000 acre-feet to the Gila River Indian Community 

3 



for the Southside Replenishment Bank (SSRB) as mandated by the intergovernmental agreement 
between the AWBA and the Gila River Indian Community. 

fhe AWBA has accrued approximately 3,698,999 acre-feet of credits at a cost of $287,328,493 from 
inception through calendar year 2011. Of this total volume, intrastate credits totaled 3,084,223 acre
feet at a cost of $178,240,671 or $57.53 per acre-foot and interstate credits totaled 550,651 acre-feet 
at a cost of $109,087,822 or $198.1 O per acre-foot. In addition to the credits accrued by the AWBA, 
50,000 acre-feet of credits previously accrued by CAWCD were transferred to the account creating a 
total of 600,651 acre-feet of credits available for Nevada. 

4 



Annual Report Requirement 

Arizona Revised Statutes§ 45-2426 mandates that the AWBA file an annual report with the 
Governor, President of the Senate, and Speaker of the House of Representatives on or before July 1 
of each year for the previous calendar year. The report is required to be a full and complete account 
of the AWBA's transactions and proceedings and must include the following: 

1 . An accounting of all monies expended from the banking fund. 

2. An accounting of all monies in the banking fund remaining available to the AWBA.

3. The amount of water stored by the AWBA.

4. The number of long-term storage credits distributed or extinguished by the AWBA.

5. The purposes for which long-term storage credits were distributed or extinguished by the AWBA.

6. A description of the water banking services and interstate water banking to be undertaken by the
AWBA during the following ten-year period and a projection of the capacity of the AWBA during
that period to undertake those activities in addition to storing Colorado River water brought into
the state through the CAP for all of the following purposes:

a. Protecting this state's municipal and industrial (M&I) water users against future water shortages
on the Colorado River and disruptions of operation of the CAP.

b. Fulfilling the water management objectives of the state.

c. Making water available to implement the settlement of water rights claims by Indian
communities within Arizona.

7. Any other matter determined by the authority to be relevant to the policy and purposes of the
AWBA.

5 



ADWR Support 

Organizational Chart 

Sandra Fabritz-Whitney 
Chairman 

Maureen R. George 
Vice-Chairman 

Tom Buschatzke/Lisa A. Atkins 
Secretary 

Marshall P. Brown John Mawhinney 

Ex officio Members 
Senator Steve Pierce Representative Andy Tobin 

Kim MitchellNirginia O'Connell 
Manager 

Gerry Wildeman Tim Henley 
Tech. Administrator Contract Consultant 

Ajita Athalye 
Financial Reports 

Ken Slowinski and Nicole Klobas 
Legal Counsel 

CAWCD Support 

There were three changes to the membership of the AWBA Commission in 2011. Chairman Herbert 
R. Guenther retired in January 2011. Sandra Fabritz-Whitney was appointed Director of the Arizona
Department of Water Resources (ADWR) and by statute became the Chairperson of the AWBA. Tom
Buschatzke retired from the City of Phoenix was replaced by Marshall P. Brown from the City of
Scottsdale as the member who represents an entity that holds a Central Arizona Project municipal
and industrial subcontract. Representative Adams was replaced by Representative Tobin. Lisa
Atkins continued to serve in her role as designee of Susan Bitter Smith, President of the CAWCD
Board and was elected Secretary replacing Tom Buschatzke.

Additionally, there were changes to the AWBA staff members. Virginia O'Connell replaced Kim 
Mitchell upon her retirement in January 2011 and Gerry Wildeman replaced Virginia O'Connell as the 
Technical Administrator. 

6 



Update 

2011 Plan of Operation 

The initial 2011 AWBA Plan of Operation (Plan) identified 136,441 acre-feet of planned intrastate 
deliveries utilizing water from CAWCD's AWBA/CAGRD pool. Water deliveries were scheduled for 
storage facilities in all three counties. The AWBA also scheduled the direct delivery of 1,000 acre
feet of water to the Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) for the Southside Replenishment Bank 
(SSRB). Pursuant to the Letter Amendment to the Second Amended Agreement (Letter 
Amendment), the Plan did not include an interstate water banking component on behalf of Nevada. 

In 2011, the AWBA continued its quarterly meeting schedule with meetings on March 30, June 15, 
October 4, and December 7, 2011. The AWBA held a special meeting on August 25, 2011 to discuss 
and take action on an amendment to the 2011 Plan of Operation. 

The initial Plan was amended to accommodate a request for additional water by several of the 
AWBA's Groundwater Savings Facilities partners. (See discussion in Activities and Projects - 2011 
Section) The amendment did not increase the amount of water stored by the AWBA in 2011. 

In 2011, the AWBA received a total of 136,576 acre-feet of water The quantity of water that was 
delivered to each facility is described in Appendix A and totaled 65,651 acre-feet in the Phoenix AMA, 
13,052 acre-feet in the Pinal AMA, and 36,873 acre-feet in the Tucson AMA. 

While no Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment (ICUA) was created in 2011, the AWBA 
certified that 8,159 acre-feet of ICUA was created for the benefit of California in 201 O by letter to the 
Bureau of Reclamation. 

Based on the Decree accounting data, total consumptive use of Colorado River water by Arizona for 
2011 was 2.78 MAF. Distribution of the 2.78 MAF was approximately 1.15 MAF for direct uses along 
the Colorado River and CAP diversions of approximately 1.63 MAF (U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, 
Lower Colorado River Operations, Colorado River Accounting and Water Use Report Arizona, 
California, Nevada - Calendar Year 2011, dated May 2011 ). In 2011, storage by the AWBA assisted 
Arizona in using its entitlement to Colorado River water. 

Again in 2011, legislative transfers to assist in balancing the State's budget negatively impacted the 
Arizona Water Banking (AWB) Fund. The total impact to the AWB Fund, while not as great as in 
past years, totaled $327,300 reducing both the Withdrawal Fee and Administration subaccounts. 

In 201 O, CAWCD filed a lawsuit in Superior Court claiming that the legislative transfer of funds from 
the Arizona Water Banking Fund Nevada Resource subaccount was unconstitutional. A hearing was 
held on June 10, 2011, and Judge Kreamer issued his decision that the legislative sweep of Nevada's 
money from the AWB Fund was unconstitutional. However, he did note that the claims statutes 
applied meaning that the swept funds would not be returned to the AWBA because the original claim 
vas not considered timely filed. In his written decision, the judge ruled that the taking was 
unconstitutional but did not rule that the money needed to be returned to the Water Banking Fund. 

7 



Judge Kreamer's decision was very specific and only applies to the funds the AWBA received from 
Nevada. The ruling was not appealed by either party. 
'=or additional information regarding the AWBA, please see the AWBA website at 
NWW.azwaterbank.qov or contact Virginia O'Connell (voconnell@azwater.gov), Terri Sue Rossi 
(tsrossi@azwater.gov) or Tim Henley (tjhenley@azwater.gov), or by phone at 602-771-8487. 

8 



r Activities and Projects - 2011 

Amended 2011 Plan of Operation 

Due to a series of unforeseen events, certain AWBA partners were in a situation where they would 
not have water available to irrigate their crops. The Plan was amended for two reasons. The first was 
to change the delivery points of previously scheduled water and the second was to modify the 
payment schedule to accommodate the change in deliveries. 

The Plan was modified as follows: 

I. 5,000 acre-feet of water initially scheduled for the Tonopah Desert Recharge Project was
redirected to the New Magma Irrigation and Drainage District (NMIDD) Groundwater Savings
Facility (GSF). Because the water did not leave the Phoenix AMA, NMIDD paid the AWBA
partner cost share of $33 per acre-foot. Final end of year deliveries identified 2,626 acre-feet of
the 5,000 acre-feet delivered to NMIDD.

11. 15,000 acre-feet of water initially scheduled for storage in the Tucson AMA was redirected to
the Pinal AMA for storage at the GSFs. Because water was moved from the Tucson AMA to
the Pinal AMA where the AWBA had no remaining funds, in order to accomplish the storage,
the GSF partners agreed to pay all of the AWBA's costs of $137 per acre-foot.

The AWBA's 2012 Plan of Operation, approved in December 2011, included an estimated 34,000 
acre-feet of water for storage in the Tucson AMA. This storage utilizes all estimated funds available in 
the Tucson area, including funds carried over for water that was not ultimately stored in 2011. Since 
the cost of water has remained the same from last year, the 15,000 acre-feet that was redirected last 
year will cost the same to deliver and store in 2012. Because the AWBA utilized all funds available in 
the Tucson area, the AWBA is still storing the same amount of water it would have stored in the 
Tucson AMA over the two year period (2011 and 2012). 

One advantage of having redirected the water is that the Pinal AMA GSF partners paid all of the 
AWBA's costs. Because the funds used to develop the long-term storage credits were not AWBA 
funds, the AWBA has some flexibility in how it distributes these credits in the future. As an example, 
during times of shortage, the credits could be recovered in the Pinal AMA but used for the benefit of 
other AMAs, on River firming or Indian Settlement firming. The AWBA has discussed the opportunity 
to use these credits to assist the AWBA in meeting its firming goal in the Tucson AMA. However, the 
AWBA could use these credits for other purposes if not needed in the Tucson AMA. The total amount 
of credits in this category is 14, 125 acre-feet. 

Interstate Banking 

Pursuant to the Letter Amendment to the Second Amended Agreement for Interstate Water Banking 
executed in December 2010, there was no storage or recovery for Nevada in 2011. The parties had 
agreed that because of hydrologic and economic conditions, the AWBA would forego additional 
·'lterstate water banking for SNWA through 2014, and SNWA would forego requests for development
of ICUA in the same time frame. The Letter Amendment also modified the payment schedule making
the first $23 million dollar payment due in 2015. The AWBA's long-term storage credit sub-account

9 



for SNWA remained at 600,651 acre-feet. Annual interstate storage for 2002 through 2011 is 
displayed in Table 6b. In 2011, staffs of CAP, SNWA, CRCN, ADWR and the AWBA continue to 
11eet and discuss all aspects of the Second Amended Agreement for Interstate Water Banking. 

Interstate Water Banking Report 

Since 2006, the AWBA has been required to submit a report to the Joint Legislative Buget Committee 
(JLBC) pursuant to A.R.S. § 45-2473. This report must be submitted by October 1 for the previous 
fiscal year if the AWBA was owed or received any monies pursuant to an interstate water banking 
agreement. The report shall account for all of the money received or disbursed pursuant to an 
interstate water banking agreement. The AWBA transmitted the Interstate Water Banking Report for 
Fiscal Year 2010-2011 to the JLBC as required. A report that accounts for the distribution of 
interstate monies for the time period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012 will be submitted in October 
of 2012. 

Agreements 

Groundwater Savings Facility Agreements 

The AWBA currently has nine agreements with GSF operators for storage at their facilities. These 
GSF Agreements were scheduled to terminate on December 31, 2011. There are two versions of the 
GSF Agreement, a version for operators who own or control the wells within the GSF and a version 
for operators who do not own or control the wells within the GSF. As a result of discussions with the 
GSF operators, changes were made to the language for clarification purposes. The amended 
1greements are currently in place and are effective through December 2021. 

Master Storage Agreement 

The Master Water Storage Agreement is the AWBA's contract with CAWCD that allows for storage at 
its facilities. Exhibit A to the agreement identifies the individual storage facilities available to the 
AWBA in any given year. The exhibit was modified (Master Storage Agreement - Amendment No. 2) 
to remove the Avra Valley Recharge Project, no longer owned by CAWCD, and to add the 
Superstition Mountain Recharge Project (SMRP), a new facility owned and operated by CAWCD. 
This is the only CAWCD facility located in the eastern portion of the Phoenix AMA. 

The Amended Agreement to Firm Future Supplies 

The Agreement to Firm Future Supplies (Agreement to Firm) was amended in 201 O due to the 
acquisition of additional Colorado River entitlements by the Mohave County Water Authority (MCWA). 
The Amended Agreement to Firm included a new exhibit, Exhibit C, which reserves an additional 
25,894 acre-feet of credits for MCWA. Based on the Amended Agreement to Firm, staff invoiced the 
MCWA, and subsequently received the first two payments for the credits identified in Exhibit C. 
MCWA will make an additional 18 equal quarterly installments of $25,894. The credits were 
transferred to the MCWA subaccount of the AWBA long-term storage credit account in September. 
The balance of the MCWA subaccount is now 256,174 acre-feet. 

'1\/ater Storage Permits 

The AWBA applied for a water storage permit for the Superstition Mountain Recharge Project in 
March of 2011. ADWR issued the permit and the AWBA stored 2,444 acre-feet at the facility in 2011. 

10 



In September of 2010, the AWBA had applied for water storage permit renewals for the Queen Creek 
Irrigation District, Central Arizona Irrigation and Drainage District, and Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation 
ind Drainage District GSFs. These renewals were issued in 2011. 

Storage Facility lnventoty 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §45-2452(A), the AWBA was required to develop a Storage Facility Inventory 
(Inventory) of all existing storage facilities in Arizona prior to March 1, 1997. The primary purpose of 
the Inventory is to identify storage capacity available to the AWBA to meet its water storage goals and 
evaluate if additional storage capacity is needed to meet those goals. The AWBA is required to 
update the Inventory at least once every five years. The 1997 Inventory was previously updated in 
2002, 2005 and again in 2011. In addition to meeting the mandatory update requirement, the 
Inventory is also synergistic with the Storage and Interstate Release Agreement (SIRA) that requires 
identification of recharge facilities in the Inventory prior to the AWBA utilizing those facilities for 
interstate water storage. The Inventory identified 75 permitted recharge facilities within the three 
AMAs. The AWBA has water storage permits at 22 of those facilities for a total permitted capacity of 
approximately 1 million acre-feet. The conclusion of the Inventory is that storage facilities exist in this 
state to meet the AWBA's water storage needs for the next 1 0 years. 

Indian Firming Program 

During 2011, AWBA staff participated with several Indian, non-Indian and Federal parties in 
discussions of various Indian water settlements. The AWBA concerns were mainly related to the 
need to firm water supplies resulting from the settlements. 

(he Claims Resolution Act of 2010, which includes the White Mountain Apache Tribe Water Rights 
Quantification, was signed by the President in December 2010. Under this settlement, the AWBA is 
required to firm 3,750 acre-feet per year of non-Indian agricultural (NIA) CAP water. This obligation is 
part of the 8,724 acre-feet per year of firming identified for future settlements under the Arizona Water 
Settlements Act (AWSA). The effective date of the settlement could be in two to three years 
depending on when the conditions of the settlement are met. The AWBA continues to work with the 
other parties to the settlement on the activities that need to be completed to meet the enforceability 
date of April 30, 2021 . The parties are re-drafting the settlement agreement to conform to the federal 
legislation. It is anticipated that the enforceability date will be sometime in 2014. The AWBA's 
obligation to firm NIA CAP water under this settlement is thru 2107. 

As we began 2011, the Northeastern Arizona Indian Water Rights Settlement, the settlement dealing 
with the Navajo Nation and Hopi Tribe's claims to the Lower Colorado River and the Little Colorado 
River, was moving forward. In March, Senator Jon Kyl met with all parties to the settlement and 
provided direction for the negotiations. Senator Kyl indicated that the settlement, as it had been 
proposed, was too expensive and that the parties needed to reduce the cost. He also noted that if he 
would be sponsoring the bill, it would need to be submitted by June. As a result of Senator Kyl's 
comments, the parties restructured the settlement to address only the Navajo/Hopi claims to the Little 
Colorado River and renamed it as such. By removing the Lower Colorado River component of the 
settlement, the cost of the settlement was greatly reduced. The Navajo/Hopi proposed claims to the 
Lower Colorado River will be addressed at a later date. The current settlement includes an allocation 
'lf NIA CAP water to Window Rock that would have an AWBA firming obligation of up to 3,205.5 acre
,eet per year. While not specifically identified, this obligation was included in the AWSA as part of the 
firming obligation for future settlements. Therefore, this settlement would not increase the AWBA's 
firming obligations. As 2011 ended, all the parties were hopeful that Senator Kly could introduce 

11 



Navajo-Hopi Water Rights Settlement Act legislation early in 2012. [Senator Kyl introduced the bill on 
February 14, 2012] 

Southside Replenishment Bank 

In 2009, the AWBA executed an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the Gila River Indian 
Community (GRIC) for the purpose of establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank (SSRB) as 
mandated by the AWSA. The AWBA must schedule the delivery of at least 1,000 acre-feet per year 
to the SSRB until 15,000 acre-feet have been delivered. The first delivery was made in 2009. Since 
then, the AWBA has scheduled the delivery of 1,000 acre-feet of water each year bringing the total 
volume of the SSRB to 3,000 acre-feet. 

By memorandum dated September 16, 2011, the AWBA was informed by ADWR that there were no 
irrigation replenishment obligations for the 2010 reporting year. It is not anticipated that there will be 
irrigation replenishment obligations for the 2011 reporting year, but that information will not be 
available until later in 2012 and will be reported in the 2012 Annual Report. 

Water Supply and Demand Study 

An analysis was made to assist the AWBA in determining the potential for use of existing and future 
AWBA long-term storage credits (credits) to meet the CAP and On-river Municipal and Industrial 
(M&I) and Indian firming requirements during times of shortage. A series of operational scenarios 
were developed and modeled using the Colorado River System Simulation (CRSS), which was 
modified by using Arizona assumptions for operating the Colorado River. Based on the analysis, the 
A.WBA will be able to estimate if and when additional supplies will be needed to meet its obligations . 
.f additional supplies are needed, an estimate of the cost of those future supplies can be developed 
based on potential sources and when they are needed. 

The CRSS Model was run for the period of 2008 to 2138 (2138 was used to accommodate the 
potential for a Northeastern Arizona Indian Water Rights Settlement). A number of scenarios were 
modeled to test the sensitivity of shortages to various assumptions. From this initial analysis three 
scenarios were selected for further analysis: (1) 1997 Base, (2) AWBA Base, and (3) Maximum 
Firming. The 1997 Base represents the conditions present when the existing AWBA goals were 
established. The AWBA Base was modeled using the most current assumptions for operating the 
River and the 60th percentile water supply. The 60th percentile water supply is a conservative water 
supply (59% of the model's water supplies produce fewer shortages). Maximum Firming is the worst 
case scenario (the largest number of shortages) using the AWBA Base assumptions. 

The Water Supply and Demand Study identified the number of shortages for each firming obligation, 
the firming and shortage volumes, and the volume of credits that will be remaining after the firming 
period. Based on the initial analysis, the probability of shortage before 2022 is very low {6%) and will 
likely only affect Indian water uses. However, this is based on the 60th percentile. If another 
percentile was selected the year and probability could change. Under maximum firming conditions 
(total firming of over 4.4 MAF}, there is a 15.4% chance that the first M&I shortage will occur in 2035. 
While the planning scenario shows that the AWBA will have credits remaining for most firming 
obligations, under current circumstances, the AWBA does not develop sufficient credits to firm M&I 
c;hortages in Pima County after 2057. Under Maximum Firming, by the year 2091, there is also a 
Jeficit of approximately 128 KAF of credits needed for meeting the Indian firming obligations. 

12 



Credit Distribution 

'\s CAWCD's continued its recovery planning process, questions arose concerning the AWBA's role 
1n recovery, specifically firming, and if the AWBA needs to develop policies regarding the distribution 
of its credits. The AWBA's role is fairly specific in the distribution of the credits earned with the 4¢ ad

valorem tax: 

" ... shall distribute long-term storage credits accrued with monies deposited in the fund 
in accordance with section 48-3715.03, subsection B only for the benefit of the county in 
which the monies were collected. The Authority shall distribute these long-term storage 
credits to CAWCD to the extent necessary to meet the demands of CAWCD's municipal 
and industrial subcontractors during times in which CAWCD's diversions from the 
Colorado River have been or will be disrupted by shortages on the Colorado River or by 
disruptions in operation of the central Arizona project." §45-2457(8)(7). 

However, the statute is silent on how the AWBA will accomplish the distribution. The recovery 
process could benefit by the AWBA developing guidance or policies on how it will distribute these 
credits. 

The AWBA's role is not as specific in the distribution of the credits earned with the withdrawal fees: 

" ... shall distribute or extinguish long-term storage credits accrued with monies collected 
in accordance with section 45-611 , subsection C, paragraph 3 only for the benefit of the 
active management area in which the monies were collected. The Authority may 
distribute or extinguish these long-term storage credits to the extent necessary to meet 
the demands of CAWCD's municipal and industrial subcontractors during times in which 
CAWCD's diversions from the Colorado river have been or will be disrupted by 
shortages on the Colorado river or by disruptions in operation of the central Arizona 
project, to implement the settlement of water right claims by Indian communities in this 
state or, on request from the director, to meet the other water management objectives 
set forth in chapter 2 of this title." §45-2457(8)(6). 

Because the statute is not as specific when dealing with the withdrawal fee credits, an entire set of 
different issues could arise leading to additional guidance and polices. An initial workshop with 
interested parties was held to assist the AWBA in developing guidance and policies. The primary 
goal was to solicit input with respect to the transfer of AWBA long-term storage credits during 
declared shortages. 

Several issues were raised by the participants at the workshop: 
1 . Issues associated with distribution of credits during shortage are both procedural and policy 

in nature. 
2. There is a need to gain clarity on what the phrase "to the extent necessary'' means.
3. Is equity a consideration when policies are being developed?
4. Perception of other states, particularly in the Lower Basin, will be important when developing

potential policies.
5. Discussion will first focus on 4¢ ad valorem tax and then on withdrawal fees.
6. Do priorities regarding use of credits need to be established?
7. Meeting participants indicated that they thought staff from AWBA, ADWR and CAWCD

needed to have internal discussion and that some basic decisions need to be made.

13 



The IGA among ADWR, AWBA, and CAWCD identifies certain cooperative activities and joint 
planning processes that the parties must participate in periodically. These activities include 
ieveloping a coordinated and cooperative planning process that addresses issues such as: 1) the 
ruture distribution and use of water stored by the AWBA, and 2) the recovery of water stored by the 
AWBA and CAWCD for water management objectives set forth in statute. Based on their recovery 
planning process, CAWCD has developed a good understanding of the physical aspects of 
recovering credits and delivering water during shortages. However, as identified at the workshop, 
several process and policy questions have been raised. AWBA staff identified these questions in a 
preliminary draft on Potential Policies Regarding Distribution of Long-Term Storage Credits for M&I 
Firming, which was provided at the AWBA Commission meeting on March 30, 2011. AWBA, 
CAWCD, and ADWR staff began meeting on a regular basis to discuss the issues that were 
identified. 

These discussions primarily concern the distribution of AWBA credits during shortages and are 
currently focused on distribution of 4<,t: ad valorem tax credits. As an outcome of these discussions, 
staff recommended that an IGA would be a likely method of coordinating the activities of the three 
organizations, i.e. ADWR, AWBA, and CAWCD, allowing each organization to maintain and adhere to 
its respective regulations, authorities and policies. 

At the December AWBA Quarterly Meeting, staff provided a conceptual outline for an IGA. The 
outline focuses on the responsibilities of each organization and how they will collectively work 
together to insure recovery and distribution of water during shortages or CAP outages. 

Summary of potential policies and concerns that are included in the draft Conceptual IGA: 

• AWBA Policies/Rules/Statutes
a. Considering credit preservation when distributing AWBA credits
b. Limiting the amount of credits to up to 20% of the shortage amount
c. Use of AWBA credits for the purpose of accruing long-term storage credits
d. Distribution of the credits within the AMA or County that is being benefited
e. When to use 4<,t: ad valorem tax credits vs. withdrawal fee credits

• CAWCD Policies/Rules/Statutes
a. Meeting its CAP M&I subcontractors' full orders during a shortage event using a

combination of Project Water and AWBA credits
b. Delivery of recovered credits as Project Water
c. Creation of a credit recovery schedule
d. Recovery agreements CAWCD may have with entities that will be recovering credits on

behalf of CAWCD
e. Managing the shortage and distribution of supplies

• ADWR Policies/Rules/Statutes
a. Develop credit transfer form and fees
b. Recovery for M&I firming
c. Use of AWBA long-term storage credits
d. Annual recovery reports long-term storage accounting

rhe AWBA, ADWR and CAWCD continue to meet to discuss the distribution of AWBA credits during 
times of shortage. 

14 



2012 Plan of Operation 

'Jnder the AWBA's 2012 Plan approved December 7, 2011, projected deliveries include 119,002 
acre-feet for intrastate storage and 1,000 acre-feet for direct delivery to the GRIC for the SSRB. 
Based on the Plan, 57,062 acre-feet will be recharged at USFs and 61,940 acre-feet at GSFs. There 
is no interstate storage planned for 2012. 

Website 

Staff continues to utilize the AWBA website in an effort to provide timely and accurate information to 
the water community regarding the AWBA's activities: www.azwaterbank.gov. The web page 
contains information about the AWBA, Commission members and staff, announcements, meetings, 
storage facilities and water deliveries. It also contains documents that may be downloaded and 
provides links to other water-related websites. In order to comply with State mandated website 
guidelines, the website had a significant remodel in 2011. While the interface changed, the 
information previously provided did not. 

Monies Expended from the Banking Fund 

Arizona Revised Statutes §45-2425 mandates the various sources of monies for the AWB Fund. The 
AWB fund is administered by the AWBA. In 2011, the AWBA obtained its funding from the following 
sources: 

1 . Fees for groundwater pumping are collected within the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson AMAs. Fees 
for water banking purposes are charged at $2.50 per acre-foot. Legislative changes allow for 
groundwater withdrawal fees to be collected and available to the AWBA beyond 2016 (A.R.S. §45-
611 (c)(3)). Long-term storage credits accrued with these monies must be used to benefit the 
AMA in which they were collected. 

2. No ad valorem tax revenues were deposited into the AWB Fund in 2011. In June of 2010, the
CAWCD Board again resolved that all taxes to be levied for the following tax year would be
retained by CAWCD. All ad valorem monies previously held in the AWB Fund were expended by
2007. Money from this source must be used to benefit the county in which it was collected.

3. No general fund appropriation money was deposited in the AWB Fund in 2011.

4. Pursuant to the Agreement to Firm, MCWA agreed to prepay the AWBA to set aside 230,280
acre-feet of credits that were transferred to the MCWA sub-account. Once the credits were
identified for use by an entity outside of the three-county service area, CAWCD was required to
charge the AWBA a fee in lieu of the 4¢ ad valorem tax. Monies collected from MCWA are used
to offset the CAWCD fees which are charged at the same rate and on the same quarterly
schedule as MCWA's prepayments to the AWBA. The final payment due under the Agreement to
Firm was made by MCWA in November of 2010 for the first quarter of 2011. The first prepayment
under the Amended Agreement to Firm that sets aside an additional 25,894 acre-feet of credits
was made in September of 2011 for the quarter beginning on October 1.

l"able 1 shows the money the AWBA collected and the money that was expended for delivery and 
storage of water in 2011 by source of funds. Table 2 shows the total money received, expended and 
remaining through December 2011 by source of funds. 

15 



Table 1. Monies Collected and Expended in 2011 by Source of Funds 

Source of Funds Money Collected Money Expended 

General Funds $0 

In-Lieu Fund- MCWA Prepayments $25,894 

State Indian Firming $0 
Interstate Water Banking - Nevada 

Nevada Resource 
1 

$37 

Operating 
1 

$482 
Subtotal for Interstate $519 

Shortage Reparations - NV $0 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax2 

Maricopa County $0 

Pinal County $0 
Pima County $0 

Subtotal for Ad valorem $0 

Groundwater Withdrawal Fees 
Phoenix AMA $1,533,282 

Pinal AMA $1,195,491 

Tucson AMA $388,801 

Subtotal for Withdrawal Fees $3,117,574 
TOTAL $3,143,988 

1 
Amount collected is interest. 

2 
Money expended by CAWCD to offset the AWBA delivery costs. 

Table 2. Monies Collected and Expended through December 2011 
and Monies Remaining Available 

Source of Funds 
Money Money 

Collected Expended 

General Funds $11, 100,865 $11, 100,865 

In-Lieu Fund - MCWA Pre-payments $4,631,494 $4,631,494 

State Indian Firming2 $2,338,171 $2,338,171 

Interstate Water Banking-NV 
Pre-Amended Agreement $10,053,945 $10,053,945 

Nevada Resource
2 

$86,594,163 $86,589,032 
Operating $12,698,179 $12,444,845 

Subtotal for Interstate $109,346,287 $109,087,822 

Shortage Reparations - NV $2,999,748 $2,999,748 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax4 

Maricopa County $199,074,663 $80,096,219 
Pinal County $9,172,397 $8,465,665 
Pima County $38,500,287 $34,513,773 

Subtotal for Ad valorem $246,747,347 $123,075,656 

Groundwater Withdrawal Fees 

Phoenix AMA
2 

$17,176,549 $17,175,551 
Pinal AMA

2 
$14,537,146 $14,412,367 

Tucson AMA
2 

$7,526,804 $7,486,313 
Subtotal for Withdrawal Fees $39,240,499 $39,074,231 

TOTAL $416,404,411 $292,307,987 

$0 

$25,894 

$0 

$0 

$0 
$0 

$0 

$7,726,206 

$1,032,200 

$5,067,961 

$13,826,367 

$1,408,732 

$961,800 

$468,641 
$2,839,173 

$16,691,434 

Money 
Available1 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 
$5,131 

$253,334 
$258,466 

$0 

$118,978,444 

$706,732 

$3,986,514 
$123,671,690 

$998 

$124,779 

$40,491 
$166,268 

$124,096,424 

1 Money remaining in AWB Fund or collected by CAWCD; includes monies committed for the 2012 Plan of Operation.
2 Total money collected was decreased to reflect legislative transfers in CV 2004, CV 2005, CY 2009, CV 2010 and CV 2011. 
3 Interest accrued prior to, but deposited after Legislative transfer in CY 2010.
4 

Includes money collected and money expended by CAWCD to offset the AWBA delivery costs. 

16 



Again in 2011, legislative transfers to assist in balancing the State's budget negatively impacted the 
AWB Fund. The total impact to the AWB Fund, while not as great as past years, totaled $327,300 
·educing both the Withdrawal Fee and Administration subaccounts.

Long-term Storage Credits 

The AWBA has established long-term storage credit accounts with ADWR for each AMA. After 
receiving the AWBA's annual reports, ADWR calculates and issues long-term storage credits to the 
appropriate accounts. The AWBA receives credit for 95 percent of the stored water. After credits 
are issued to the account, AWBA staff allocates the credits to the appropriate sub-accounts based on 
source of funding. The number and distribution of long-term storage credits for 2011 are listed in 
Table 3. The cumulative totals of long-term storage credits accrued by the AWBA through December 
2011 are listed in Table 4. 

Table 3. Number and Location of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued in 2011 

Location and Funding Source 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 

Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 
General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate - Nevada 

AMA Total 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 

Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 
General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate - Nevada 

Other- (GSF Operator Full Cost Share) 
AMA Total 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 

Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 
General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate - Nevada 

AMA Total 
Totals by Funding Source 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 

Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 
General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate - Nevada 

Other- (GSF Operator Full Cost Share) 

TOTAL 

17 

Long-term Storage Credits 
Accrued (acre-feet) 

52,715 

9,268 

0 

0 

0 

0 
61,983 

9,289 
7,534 

0 

0 

0 

0 

14,125 

30,947 

31,688 

2,986 

0 

0 

0 

0 

34,674 

93,691 

19,788 

0 

0 

0 

0 

14,125 

127,605 



Table 4. Cumulative Total and Location of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued 
through December 2011 

Location and Funding Source 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate Water Banking - Nevada 

AMA Total 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate Water Banking - Nevada 

Other- (GSF Operator Full Cost Share) 
AMA Total 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

1 

General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate Water Banking - Nevada 

AMA Total 
Totals by Source of Funds 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund2 

Indian Finning 
Shortage Reparations 

Interstate Water Banking - Nevada
3 

Other- (GSF Operator Full Cost Share) 

TOTAL 

Long-term Storage Credits 
Accrued (acre-feet) 

1,271,392 

278,253 

42,316 

0 

20,642 

51,009 

1,663,612 

181,373 

381,796 

306,968 

0 

60,507 

439,851 

14,125 

1,384,620 

361,150 

95,573 

54,546 

28,481 

1,227 

109,791 

650,768 

1,813,916 

755,622 

403,830 

28,481 

82,375 

600,651 

14,125 

3,698,999 

1 
Includes 234 acre-feet of credits purchased from the Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to§ 45-841.01. 

2 By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-river firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued 
through expenditure of general fund appropriations. Pursuant to the AWBA Agreement to Firm with MCWA dated 
February 4, 2005, a total of 230,280 acre-feet of credits were transferred to the AWBA long-term storage subaccount for 
the MCWA in 2005. An additional 25,894 acre-feet of credits have been reserved under Exhibit C the Amended 
Agreement to Firm, dated December 8, 2010, for a total of 256,174 acre-feet. By resolution passed in 2008, the AWBA 
established a replacement account for 4

th 
priority Colorado River M&I users. 

3 Includes 50,000 acre-feet of credits transferred to SNWA. 

Since inception, the AWBA has focused its efforts on developing long-term storage credits for firming 
purposes. The AWBA has identified 2,700,000 acre-feet of credits as a reasonable amount of credits 
to firm the CAP M&I subcontracts over the next 100 years. This volume is divided based on a pro
rata distribution by county based on CAP M&I subcontracts as follows: 58 percent Maricopa County, 
32 percent Pima County, and 9 percent Pinal County. 

The AWBA has also identified 420,000 acre-feet of credits as a reasonable amount of credits to firm 
the on-river communities over the next 100 years. In 2002, the AWBA adopted a resolution that 

18 



identified on-river firming as the highest priority of use for the general fund credits and established 
priorities for other uses (Indian settlements, etc.). Consequently, all or part of the general fund credits 
could be utilized to firm on-river M&I users. It should be noted that the AWBA will collect 
reimbursement for the replacement cost of credits used for on-river firming. In 2008, the AWBA 
executed Resolution 2008-1 that established a long-term storage credit replacement account for 4th 

priority Colorado River M&I users. As credits are used and replaced, these replacement credits will 
be placed in a separate replacement subaccount and be earmarked for the entity that reimburses the 
AWBA for the replacement of those credits. Table 5 illustrates the progress made by the AWBA 
towards meeting its established goals. 

Table 5 also identifies the estimated remaining costs for meeting the AWBA's goals and obligations. 
These estimates are developed based on the assumptions contained in the AWBA's Ten-Year Plan 
for 2013-2022 and are subject to potential shortages discussed under the recovery section. For 
obligations that are not met in the Ten-Year Plan, 2023 estimated costs were assumed when 
calculating the amount remaining to meet the goals. 

As described in the Ten-Year Plan section of this report, most of the firming goals will be met during 
the next ten years. Those not met include the Tucson AMA and on-river M&I firming goals, and the 
Nevada contract obligation. Approximately 70 percent of the Tucson AMA firming goal will have been 
met by 2022. Since all of the ad valorem tax monies will have been expended by 2017, the AWBA 
will need to rely on withdrawal fees to meet the remainder of this firming goal. Because revenue from 
withdrawal fees is limited in the Tucson AMA (less than $500,000 per year), the firming goal would 
not be met until well beyond 2025. Therefore, estimated rates for 2023 were used to calculate the 
total remaining costs for the Tucson AMA firming goal. Expenditures under the Ten-Year Plan for the 
Tucson AMA are estimated at $31 million, utilizing ad valorem tax monies ($21 million) and 
withdrawal fees ($5 million), and the remaining costs, which would be limited to the use of withdrawal 
fees, are estimated at $52 million for a total cost of $78 million. 

Likewise, because it is not known if, or when, the AWBA will receive general fund appropriations in 
the future, the same method was applied to calculate the remaining on-river firming costs. It was also 
assumed that storage for on-river firming purposes would be at GSFs. 

Although funding is not the limiting factor for meeting the Nevada contract obligation, the same 
assumption was used to calculate the remaining interstate costs because the amount of water 
available for this purpose after 2022 is not known. Interstate storage costs for the Ten-Year Plan are 
estimated at $11 million, which results in a cumulative balance of 642,518 acre-feet of credits. 
Utilizing estimated 2023 rates and average USF/GSFstorage costs, the remaining 607,482 acre-feet 
of credits would cost an additional $141 million for a total cost of $152. million. 

Lastly, the remaining costs for meeting the Indian firming goals were estimated by assuming that 
because the M&I firming goals could be met using ad valorem taxes and only a portion of existing 
withdrawal fee credits from the Pinal AMA, all withdrawal fee credits accrued in the Phoenix and Pinal 
AMAs in the next ten years would be applied toward meeting these goals. Existing withdrawal fee 
credits in the Pinal AMA and credits accrued from storage at the Gila River Indian Irrigation and 
Drainage District GSF, could be used to meet the remaining firming goal. Existing withdrawal fee 
credits from the Phoenix AMA could be used to meet the firming goal for future Indian settlements. 
Because funding has already been expended for these credits, they were not included in the 
calculation for remaining costs. 

19 



Table 5. Identified Uses of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued through December 2011 and 
Percentage of AWBA Goals Achieved 

Location and Funding Source Goal Obligation Non-Credit Credits Percent Estimated' 
Objective Goal/Oblig. Accrued Goal/Oblig. Remaining 

Achieved (AF) Achieved Costs 
($ Million) 

Phoenix AMA 
M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 1,566,000 AF 1,271,392 81% $44 

Groundwater Mgmf Withdrawal Fees 278,253 99% 

Pinal AMA 
M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 243,000 AF 181,373 75% $5 
Groundwater Momt2 Withdrawal Fees 381,796 232% 

Tucson AMA 
M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 864,000 AF 361,150 42% $21 

Groundwater Momt2 Withdrawal Fees 89,952 52% $57 

On-River M&I 
Firmlng3 General Fund 420,000 AF 403,830 96% $2.5 
Indian 
Settlements: 

350,000 AF4 
up to 15,000 

a
s GRIC Firmino Withdrawal Fees AF/YR 0% $14 

200,000 AF4 
up to 8,724 

a
s Future Settlements Withdrawal Fees AF/YR N/A $18 

Federal Assistance6 $3,000,000 $3,000,000 34,102 100% $0 
Tucson AMA Appropriation $2,338,171 28,481 

Withdrawal Fees $630,490 5,621 

Cost of Services $31,339 n/a 

Southside Repl. 15,000 AF 
Bank Withdrawal Fees Direct Delivery 3,000 20% $1.8 

Interstate Water Contract with 
Banking- NV Nevada 1,250,000 AF7 600,651 13% $152 

Other: 

Shortage Gifts, Grants, 
Reparation -Nevada Donations $8,000,000 $2,999,748 82,375 37% $5 

Pinal Redirect 
Credits8 

n/a 14,125 

1 Based on the ten-year plan and an assumed rate escalation of 1 % for water storage costs after 2017
2 Withdrawal fees could be utilized in addition to 4¢ ad valorem tax revenues tor M&I firming if needed to reach firming goals. 
3 By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-river firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued through 
expenditure of general fund appropriations. Pursuant to the AWBA Agreement to Firm with the Mohave County Water Authority 
(MCWA) dated February 4, 2005, a total of 230,280 acre-feet of credits were transferred to the AWBA long-term storage subaccount for 
the MCWA in 2005. An additional 25,894 acre-feet of credits have been reserved under Exhibit C the Amended Agreement to Firm, 
dated December 8, 2010, for a total of 256,174 acre-feet 
4 Based on estimates from the Indian Firming Study Commission Report dated January 6, 2006. 

s No credits have been dedicated for this purpose but Withdrawal Fee Credits could be used if a shortage were to occur. 
6 Expenditures include $14,883 and $16,456 deducted for payment of cost of services for FY 08 and FY 09, respectively.
7 Pursuant to the Second Amended Agreement for Interstate Water Banking, the AWBA has committed to have this number of long

term storage credits within the Nevada subaccount. 
7 Credits accrued from AWBA water provided to Pinal AMA GSFs at full cost to the GSF operators. These credits are currently identified 

for use in the Tucosn AMA. 

20 



The average annual cost for the AWBA to obtain one acre-foot of long-term storage credit for 
intrastate and interstate storage is presented in Tables 6a and 6b, respectively. Table 6a illustrates 
that the unit cost per credit for intrastate storage fluctuates yearly. CAWCD establishes the cost for 
delivery and storage of excess water. The sigificant increase beginning 2010 is due to CAWCD 
eliminating the incentive recharge cost structure. 

Table Ga. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit 
for Intrastate Storage 

Year Credits
1 Funds Expended 

Average Cost 
Ratio of GSF to USF 

(per acre-foot) 

1997 296,987 $6,387,000 $21.51 85%: 15% 

1998 202,542 $7,143,000 $35.27 68%: 32% 

1999 232,142 $8,733,000 $37.61 68%: 32% 

2000 272,123 $11,163,000 $41.02 60%: 40% 

2001 275,406 $10,893,590 $39.55 62%: 38% 

2002 262,317 $13,700,300 $52.23 64%: 36% 

2003 200,168 $11,077,666 $55.34 47%: 53% 

2004 251,456 $17,855,997 $71.01 41%: 59% 

2005 85,782 $5,615,201 $65.46 58% :42% 

2006 162,342 $14,720,277 $90.67 17%: 83% 

2007 245,221 $14,589,390 $59.49 37%: 63% 

2008 203,373 $8,168,100 $40.16 65%: 35% 

2009 
2 

99,453 $6,977,590 $70.16 76%: 24% 

2010 181,214 $26,027,947 $143.63 21%: 79% 

2011 127,605 $16,543,540 $129.65 33%: 67% 

Information in this table is reconciled on an annual basis. 
2 

Does not include credits purchased pursuant to § 45-841.01. 

Table 6b illustrates the unit cost per long-term storage credit for interstate also fluctuates yearly. No 
interstate storage occurred in 2011. 

Table 6b. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit 
for Storage on Behalf of Nevada 

Year Credits Funds Expended 
Average Cost 

Ratio of GSF to USF 
(per acre-foot) 

2002 61,098 $8,617,393 $141.04 100%: 0% 

2003 50,000
1 

2004 14,162 $2,899,647 $204.75 66%: 34% 

2005 111,805 $25,723,366 $230.07 65%: 35% 

2006 175,569 $35,386,306 $201.55 68%: 32% 

2007 114,886 $21,853,906 $190.22 91%: 09% 

2008 None None $0 0%: 0% 

2009 55,252 $10,781,853 $195.14 45%: 55% 

2010 17,879 $3,825,350 $213.96 0%: 100% 

2011 None None $0 0%: 0% 

1 
Long-term Storage Credits transferred from CAWCD. 

21 



Long-term Storage Credits Distributed or Extinguished by the Authority 

The long-term storage credits developed by the AWBA to date have been identified for five purposes: 

• Firming CAP M&I entitlements;
• Firming the post-1968 M&I entitlements for entities outside the CAP service area;
• Firming for the Federal obligation under the AWRSA;
• Fulfilling the water management objectives set forth in Chapter 2 of Title 45 (Arizona Revised

Statutes); and
• Interstate water banking purposes pursuant to agreements with Nevada.

Credits created by the AWBA for firming purposes may be distributed or extinguished when the 
Colorado River system is deemed to be in a shortage or if there is an operational disruption of the 
CAP. There were no shortages or unplanned CAP operational problems, therefore, no credits were 
distributed or extinguished for these purposes in 2011. No credits were distributed or extinguished in 
2011 for water management purposes. 

Under the 1999 amendments to the AWBA legislation, the AWBA is authorized to develop credits with 
monies collected pursuant to water banking services agreements. In 2011, no credits were 
developed or distributed under such agreements. 

The AWBA did not recover or distribute any credits in 2011. 

22 



Ten-Year Plan 

Introduction 

Preparation of the Ten-Year Plan is statutorily mandated. The Ten-Year Plan must include a 
description of any water banking activities the AWBA intends to undertake in addition to the three 
primary AWBA functions of firming for M&I supplies, assisting in Indian water rights settlements, and 
fulfilling state water management objectives. The Ten-Year Plan is presented in Table 7. The Ten
Year Plan must also provide an analysis of the AWBA's ability to complete those activities. This 
analysis is provided in Table 8. The Ten-Year Plan is not a guarantee of future storage activities and 
is completed for planning purposes only. In any given year, the AWBA's activities are governed by 
the annual Plan of Operation. 

The Ten-Year Plan (Table 7) analyzes activity for the period 2013-2022 and was derived using the 
information found in Appendices A through J. AWBA accounting for previous years can be found in 
the 2010 Annual Report and 2012 Plan of Operation. AWBA staff developed the Ten-Year Plan 
based on the following guiding principles: 

1. There are no legislative transfers from the AWB Fund.
2. The intent of the plan is to evaluate if the AWBA can engage in water banking activities beyond

the scope of the currently established AWBA role and to what extent.
3. The plan covers a ten-year time period beginning with the next calendar year. For example, this

Ten-Year Plan covers the time period 2013-2022.
4. The plan is updated annually based on current priorities of the AWBA.
5. The plan is an important tool to be utilized in development of: 1) the next year's annual Plan of

Operation and 2) policy guidelines for future AWBA activities.

Ten-Year Plan Components 

The following factors are recognized to be important elements in developing the Ten-Year Plan. 
Inclusion or exclusion of a specific factor or component of a factor was based on whether the extent 
of the effect of the factor could be predicted over the planning period, and whether the factor was 
anticipated to be at issue over the planning period. 

1 . Storage Partners and Storage Capacity 

The AWBA currently has nine water storage permits for GSFs with a total permitted storage 
capacity of 427,547 acre-feet per year. Storage at these facilities under this Ten-Year Plan is 
limited due to storage by other GSF partners. Even though there has historically been very 
little storage at GSFs in the Tucson AMA, storage has increased over the last two years 
because of the different cost share paid by the facility operators in that AMA. Therefore GSF 
storage, while still minimal, has been included in this Ten-Year Plan for the Tucson AMA. 

The AWBA has renewed water storage agreements with its GSF partners. The new 
agreements will expire December 31, 2021, the end of this ten-year planning period. The Ten
Year Plan assumes the agreements will be renewed and that the AWBA will continue to 
participate with these GSF partners. 

23 



The AWBA currently has nine water storage permits for USFs with a total permitted storage 
capacity of 561,000 acre-feet per year. Storage capacity available to the AWBA, primarily at 
CAWCD operated facilities, has decreased over the last few years because of storage by other 
participants. Storage capacity could continue to decline as additional entities contract with 
CAWCD and are issued water storage permits by ADWR. However, the actual capacity used 
by these entities could be limited by the availability of water to those entities. The Ten-Year 
Plan assumes that sufficient storage capacity exists to store the amount of water assumed to 
be available to the AWBA under CAWCD's policy for distributing Excess CAP water. However, 
it is possible the location of AWBA storage could be affected in the future. 

In addition, five of the USF permits will expire within this Ten-Year Plan. Any difficulty in 
obtaining new permits could impact the capacity available to the AWBA. However, because 
impacts of this nature cannot be predicted, they were discounted in the analysis of this Ten
Year Plan and the permits were assumed to be renewed. 

The AWBA's water storage agreement with the Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement 
District for storage at the Avra Valley Recharge Project will expire on December 31, 2015. 
Likewise, the AWBA's Master Water Storage Agreement with CAWCD for storage at its 
facilities will expire December 31, 2016. Renewal of these agreements is anticipated therefore 
storage at these facilities was included for the full Ten-Year Planning period. 

Appendix C describes the storage partners, storage permits, and capacity available for use by 
the AWBA. It also identifies the partners that the AWBA included in development of this Ten
Year Plan. 

24 



Table 7. Ten-Year Plan 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY-Ten-Year Plan 

(a) 
CAP 

YEAR 
Water 

Available 
forAWBA 

Pre-
n/a 

Plan(hl 
2013 82,800 

2014 78,400 

2015 72,400 

2016 66,500 

2017 155,700 

2018 154,200 

2019 152,800 

2020 151,300 

2021 149,900 

2022 148,400 

TOTAL 

FOOTNOTES: 
(a) See Appendix B.
(b) See Appendix D.

(b) (c) 

Water 
CAP M&I Firming 

Management 
(4¢ tax) (Wi thdrawal Fees) 

Delivery Credits Delivery Credits 

1,899,944 534,674 

43,942 40,866 4,372 3,136 

42,207 39,253 4,129 2,910 

41,742 38,820 3,881 2,679 

37,340 34,727 3,753 2,560 

125,403 116,625 3,685 2,497 

124,495 115,780 3,669 2,482 

121,141 112,661 3,640 2,455 

115,316 107,244 3,611 2,429 

115,417 107,338 3,583 2,402 

115,017 106,966 3,555 2,377 

2,720,224 560,601 

2013-2022 

(Acre-feet) 

(d) (e) (f) 

Appropriation Shortage 
from Reparations 

Indian 

General Fund ($8 Million) 
Settlement 

Delivery Credits Delivery Credits Delivery Credits 

403,830 82,651 244,408 

0 0 9,414 8,755 25,072 23,317 

0 0 8,845 8,226 23,150 21,529 

0 0 5,499 5,114 21,278 19,788 

0 0 5,287 4,917 20,119 18,711 

0 0 0 0 21,668 20,152 

0 0 0 0 21,660 20,143 

0 0 0 0 21,537 20,029 

0 0 0 0 21,415 19,916 

0 0 0 0 21,295 19,804 

0 0 0 0 21,175 19,693 

403,830 109,663 447,490 

(c) See Appendix E. Includes direct delivery of 1,000 acre-feet of water each year to the Southside Replenishment Bank.
( d) See Appendix F.
(e) See Appendix G.

(g) I

Water 
Available 

0 

0 

0 

0 

4,944 

4,377 

6,483 

10,958 

9,605 

8,652 

(h) I (i) I (j) I (k) 

Interstate B anking 

AWBA Remaining 
Capacity Credits ICUA 
Available Credits 

600,651 

248,000 0 0 600,651 

264,509 0 0 600,651 

270,959 0 0 600,651 

276,542 0 0 600,651 

191,286 4,598 0 605,249 

192,219 4,070 0 609,319 

195,725 6,029 20,000 595,348 

201,700 10,191 30,000 575,539 

200,605 8,933 40,000 544,471 

200,252 8,046 40,000 512,517 

642,518 130,000 

(f) See Appendix H. A.R.S. §45-2491 (B)(2) allows for the use of withdrawal fees after legislative appropriations for Indian firming have been expended. Withdrawal tee credits
accrued in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs could be utilized to meet this obligation. The pre-plan amount includes credits accrued from storage at the GRIIDD GSF and withdrawal fee
credits accrued in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs since 2008. The State Indian settlement firming obligation is estimated at 550,000 acre-feet. In addition, 34,102 acre-feet of credits
have been accrued to meet the State's obligation under Section 306 of the AWSA ($3 million tor Federal assistance).
(g) Available AWBA CAP supplies minus intrastate deliveries.
(h) See Appendix I.
(i) Cumulative totals tor 1997-2012; 2012 are estimated based on projected deliveries.
(j) Pursuant to the Recovery Agreement among the AWBA, CAWCD, SNWA, and CRCN executed June 9, 2010, recovery is anticipated to begin on or after 2018. The Ten-Year
Plan assumes maximum allowable annual recovery as described in the Second Amended Agreement.
(k) Credits remaining available in Nevada sub-account after recovery.

25 



Table 8. AWBA Percentage of Goals Achieved through 2022 

Location and Funding Source Goal Obligation Non-Credit Credits' Percent 
Objective Goal/Oblig. Accrued Goal/Oblig. 

Achieved (AF) Achieved 

Phoenix AMA 
M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 1,566,000 AF 2,138,563 137% 
Groundwater MQmt2 Withdrawal Fees 118,855 

Pinal AMA 
M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 243,000 AF 220,575 91% 
Groundwater Mgmt2 Withdrawal Fees 216,058 180% 

Tucson AMA 
M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 864,000 AF 482,665 56% 
Groundwater Mqmt2 Withdrawal Fees 121,351 70% 
On-River M&I 
Firming3 General Fund 420,000 AF 403,830 96%3 

Indian Settlements: 

up to 15,000 350,000.0 
GRIC Firming Withdrawal Fees 350,000 AF5 AF/YR 0 0% 

Phoenix AMA 88,313 

Pinal AMA 261,687 

200,000 AF5 

up to 8,724 
Future Settlements Withdrawal Fees AF/YR 200,000 NIA 

Federal Assistance6 $3,000,000 $3,000,000 34,102 100% 
Tucson AMA Appropriation $2,338,171 28,481 

Withdrawal Fees $630,490 5,621 

Cost of Services $31,339 nla 

15,000 AF 
Southside Reol. Bank Withdrawal Fees Direct Delivery 14,000 93% 

Interstate Water Contract with 
Banking- NV Nevada 1,250,000 AF7 642,518 51% 
Other: 

Shortage Reparations- Gifts, Grants, 
Nevada Donations $8,000,000 $8,000,000 109,663 100% 

Pinal Redirect Credits7 
n/a 14,125 

1 1997-2012; actual credits through 2011 and estimated credits for 2012 based on projected deliveries. 
2 The M&I firming goal for the Phoenix AMA is met in 2018. Firming goals may be exceeded if monies, water and capacity 
are available. 

3 M&I firming has been statutorily identified as a water management objective. Utilizing withdrawal fee credits for this 
purpose, 70% of the Tucson AMA firming goal will be met by 2022. Existing withdrawal fee credits can be used to meet 
the Pinal AMA firming goal. 

4 By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-river firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued 
through expenditure of general fund appropriations. A total of 256,174 acre-feet of credits have been reserved pursuant to 
the AWBA's contract with MCWA. 

5 A.R.S. §45-2491 (B)(2) allows for the use of withdrawal fees after legislative appropriations for Indian firming have been 
expended. By utilizing credits accrued from storage at the GRIIDD and credits accrued from withdrawal fees in the Pinal 
and Phoenix AMAs in this Ten-Year Plan, about 55% of the GRIC and 58% of the future settlement firming goals are 
estimated to be met in 2022. Existing withdrawal fee credits from the Pinal and Phoenix AMAs were used to meet the 
remainder of the firming goals for the GRIC and future settlements, respectively. 

6 Based on estimates from the Indian Firming Study Commission Report dated January 6, 2006. The AWBA is required to 
firm up to 23,724 AF/yr during shortages. If the firming goal has been underestimated, there are additional withdrawal fee 
credits available in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs to meet this obligation. 

7 These credits are currently identified for use in the Tucson AMA and would meet 1.6% of the firming goal.

26 



2. Recovery

This Ten-Year Plan includes a recovery component for interstate purposes pursuant to the 
Second Amended Agreement. The Second Amended Agreement authorizes Nevada to 
request development of ICUA, as follows: in the initial year, an amount not exceeding 20,000 
acre-feet; the second year, an amount not exceeding 30,000 acre-feet and in all subsequent 
years, an amount not exceeding 40,000 acre-feet. 

The water supply for this Ten-Year Plan includes only normal year deliveries and does not 
include any shortage year deliveries. ADWR and CAWCD staff work cooperatively on long
range shortage projections. Model analyses based on Reclamation's Colorado River System 
Simulation model indicate that by the end of the ten years there is approximately a one-in-four 
chance (25 percent probability) that shortages may occur. Using Arizona's assumptions in the 
model, the probability of shortage could be reduced to approximately 10-15 percent. Shortages 
occur near the end of the period and the probability is low enough that a shortage delivery 
scenario was not evaluated in this Ten-Year Plan. Under CAWCD's policy for distributing 
excess water (Appendix J), shortages would first be applied to the M&I users in the excess 
pool. Absent this policy, the AWBA has the lowest priority for CAP water so any reduction in 
CAP supplies would impact the AWBA first. 

It is not likely that credits would have to be recovered to firm CAP M&I supplies because there 
should be enough lower priority CAP water to absorb any shortage to CAP during the next ten 
years. If shortages do occur, they would most likely reduce excess CAP supply available for 
storage. However, a shortage could require the recovery of credits to meet some other firming 
obligations. On-river M&I deliveries and NIA CAP water being delivered pursuant to Indian 
settlements could be at risk but not until late in the ten-year period. If reductions to the on-river 
M&I users occur, those reductions could trigger the need to recover credits to firm M&I on-river 
supplies. In addition to the recovery required for the on-river users, the AWBA might be 
required to recover credits to meet its obligation for Indian firming. However, absent 
shortages, the only recovery planned for this Ten-Year Plan is for interstate purposes. Even 
though recovery for shortages is not anticipated for this Ten-Year Plan, recognizing the lead 
time to implement recovery, plans should be developed and put in place. AWBA, CAWCD and 
interested parties continue to evaluate recovery options and analyze impacts of shortage on 
excess CAP water supply. 

3. Water management objectives

The early activities of the AWBA were focused on achieving the goal of full utilization of 
Arizona's Colorado River allocation. With the exception of 2005, Arizona has been meeting 
this goal since 2002. Another primary objective of the AWBA is meeting the M&I firming goals. 
By the end of 2011 the AWBA anticipates having accrued over 1.8 MAF of credits for that 
purpose. The Ten-Year Plan again shows that meeting the goal set for firming Tucson AMA 
supplies is problematic. 

27 



4. Funding

A WBA General Fund Appropriation 

The AWBA has not received a general fund appropriation that was not subject to restrictions 
since 2001. The AWBA may request general fund appropriations during this planning period 
primarily to assist in meeting the AWBA's Indian firming obligations. However receipt of an 
appropriation cannot be expected. Consequently, the Ten-Year Plan does not include the 
expenditure of general fund appropriations. 

Groundwater Withdrawal Fees 

In addition to meeting the water management objectives of the AMAs in which the fees were 
collected, the AWBA may also utilize withdrawal fees to meet the M&I demands of CAP 
subcontractors, implement the settlement of water rights claims by Indian communities in 
Arizona, and meet the AWBA SSRB obligation. This Ten-Year Plan utilizes withdrawal fees to 
accrue long-term storage credits and to purchase CAP water for delivery to the SSRB. 

Ad valorem Tax 

Pursuant to A. R.S. §48-3715.03(8), 4¢ ad valorem taxes levied and collected by CAWCD that 
are not deposited in the CAWCD fund, shall be deposited into subaccounts held by the AWBA; 
one for each of the three counties in which the taxes were collected. CAWCD has not 
deposited monies collected into these AWBA subaccounts since 2003. The AWBA expended 
all of the funds that remained in the subaccounts for Pinal and Pima Counties in 2004 and 
Maricopa County in 2007. CAWCD has however assisted the AWBA by offsetting AWBA 
water delivery and storage costs using the 4¢ ad valorem tax held in its own accounts. This 
Ten-Year Plan relies on the continuation of CAWCD offsetting the AWBA's costs. It is 
important to note that A.R.S. §48-3715.02, which provides CAWCD the authority to levy the ad 
valorem tax for water storage, will be repealed effective January 2, 2017. Therefore, this Ten
Year Plan does not include collection of the ad-valorem tax beyond 2016. 

Appropriations for Indian Firming 

While it is anticipated that the AWBA might be requesting appropriations for Indian firming, 
given the recent history, this Ten-Year Plan does not include any general fund appropriations 
for Indian firming. Any recovery needed to meet the AWBA's Indian firming obligations during 
shortages would require the use of withdrawal fee credits. 

Funding for Interstate Banking 

Provisions in the Second Amended Agreement allow the AWBA and the SNWA to revise the 
annual payment schedule to provide operational flexibility. As discussed earlier, the 
agreement was modified in December 201 Oto defer AWBA storage on behalf of SNWA until 
2015, and likewise, to defer SNWA's payments of $23 million to the AWBA for the same time 
period. Even so, water supplies available for interstate storage during this Ten-Year Plan are 
expected to be minimal and do not become available until 2017, which is due primarily to a 
decrease in water storage utilizing the 4¢ ad valorem tax. 

28 



Gifts, Grants, or Donations 

Pursuant to the Arizona-Nevada Shortage-Sharing Agreement, Nevada will provide to the 
AWBA $8 million in order to assist Arizona in offsetting impacts that may occur during the 
"Interim Period". The Interim Period begins on December 13, 2007, the date the Secretary of 
the Interior issued the Record of Decision for the Colorado River Interim Guidelines for Lower 
Basin Storage and the Coordinated Operation for Lake Powell and Lake Mead, and ends on 
December 31, 2025. The AWBA has since expended approximately $3 million of these funds 
for purchase and storage of CAP water. While a final plan for the use of the credits accrued 
from the use of these funds has not yet been adopted by the Authority, expenditure of the 
remaining $5 million has been included in this Ten-Year Plan. Expenditure of these funds has 
been distributed among the three AMAs. 

5. Modifications within CAWCD with regard to pricing and pool allocation

Because of the demand for Excess CAP water, CAWCD adopted a policy in June, 2009 that 
established four separate pools in addition to the NIA pool previously established, thereby 
accounting for all excess CAP water (see Appendix J). While CAWCD's policy is effective 
through 2014, this Ten-Year Plan assumes a similar policy will be in effect for the entire ten
year period. The AWBA's water availability estimates were provided by CAWCD staff. It 
should be noted that even though CAWCD established the AWBA/CAGRD pool of 175,000 
acre-feet, the amount of water that is available in that pool in a given year is subject to the total 
amount of excess CAP water available. Because M&I subcontract and Indian contract uses 
have recently increased, the amount of water that was available in this pool for recharge in 
2012 was approximately 140,000 acre-feet. This trend is anticipated to continue for the next 
few years. However, when the NIA AG pool decreases from 400,000 acre-feet to 300,000 
acre-feet in 2017, additional water is likely to become available for other excess CAP water 
users. This Ten-Year Plan also incorporates CAWCD's 2012-2013 rate schedule, which was 
adopted on June 7, 2012. 

6. Participation in Indian settlements

One objective of the AWBA is assisting with the settlement of water rights claims by Indian 
communities within Arizona. The State of Arizona has a 100-year firming obligation under the 
AWSA. The AWBA also has statutorily mandated responsibilities for the SSAB. 

This Ten-Year Plan includes a component for meeting the State's Indian settlement firming 
obligation. While the AWBA is anticipating requesting appropriations during this Ten-Year 
Plan, future appropriations from the Legislature cannot be expected. Withdrawal fee credits 
from the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs could be used to meet this obligation while still maintaining 
credits for other water management purposes. This includes credits that were previously 
accrued from water stored at the Gila River Indian Irrigation and Drainage District GSF. The 
AWBA retains full rights to the credits developed at the GSF until such time the credits are 
dedicated specifically for meeting the State's Indian firming obligation. 

This Ten-Year Plan also includes a component for meeting the initial SSAB obligation of 
15,000 acre-feet. The AWBA will have delivered 4,000 acre-feet for this purpose by the end of 
2012 and has identified an additional 10,000 acre-feet of deliveries under this plan, at a rate of 
1,000 acre-feet each year, leaving 1,000 acre-feet that must be delivered after 2022. 
Withdrawal fees collected in the Pinal AMA are used to meet this obligation. 

29 



7. New recharge facilities and/or expanded capacities at existing facilities

The AWBA completed a revised inventory of existing storage facilities in the state as required
by A.R.S. §45-2452, which was approved by the Authority on March 17, 2011. The revised
inventory was utilized to develop this Ten-Year Plan. There are no new recharge facilities
identified in this Ten-Year Plan.

8. Interstate banking

The Ten-Year Plan includes an interstate water banking component for Nevada and indicates
that only 51 percent, or 642,518 acre-feet of credits out of the 1 .25 MAF of credits needed to
meet the Nevada obligation, could be created by 2022.

Although this Ten-Year Plan identifies storage for interstate purposes beginning in 2017, it is
not certain that water will be available for this purpose if the amount of water available in the
AWBA's pool is less than predicted. In contrast, it is also possible that additional water could
become available for interstate banking due to unanticipated precipitation or decreased water
orders by other CAP customers. Nevada could also make its unused apportionment available
to the AWBA for storage in Arizona. However, these events cannot be foreseen and are
therefore not included in this plan.

Recognizing that there is limited water available for interstate banking, the AWBA Commission
has directed staff to pursue opportunities with CAWCD to increase Project water supplies
through the acquisition of additional water supplies. Some of the supplies being assessed
include Colorado River water, Colorado River tribal leases, and uncommitted recharge credits
and may require AWBA to pursue new legislation. Based on the outcome of staff's
discussions with Nevada, if additional supplies become available they would be addressed as 
part of the AWBA's Annual Plan of Operation and succeeding Ten-Year Plans.

Conclusion 

The Ten-Year Plan is intended to serve as a guide to assist the AWBA in the development of 
its Annual Plan. The AWBA is required to develop a plan for activities to be undertaken the 
following calendar year. As part of the Annual Report, the Ten-Year Plan is reviewed and 
updated annually. Therefore, it is possible that the Ten-Year Plan may change significantly 
depending on the goals set by the AWBA and the funding and water supply available to the 
AWBA. Several conclusions that could be reached given this Ten-Year Plan are: 

1) There may not be sufficient excess CAP water to meet the state's obligation to Nevada.

2) Funding becomes a limiting factor in both Pinal and Pima County.

3) The magnitude of carryover funds in Maricopa County could become an issue in future
years.

4) Absent future appropriations, withdrawal fees will become the principle source of funding
for Indian firming.

30 



Appendice
s 

31 



APPENDIX A 
Colorado River Water Deliveries for Water Banking Purposes 

for Calendar Year 2011 by Partner and Active Management Area 

Quantity of Water 

Partner (Acre-feet) 

Intrastate Interstate 

<( Tonopah Desert Recharge Project 53,830 0 

<( 

� Superstition Mountains Recharge Project 2,444 0 

z 

New Magma Irrigation & Drainage District 2,626 0 
0 

Queen Creek Irrigation District 6,751 0 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 65,651 0 

Phoenix AMA Subtotal 65,651 

Central Arizona Irrigation & Drainage District 21,610 0 

<( 

Hohokam Irrigation & Drainage District 3,942 0 
<( 
..J 

Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation & Drainage District <( 
z 

7,500 0 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 33,052 0 

Pinal AMA Subtotal 33,052 

Avra Valley Recharge Project 1,572 0 

Lower Santa Cruz Recharge Project 11,801 0 

<( CAVSARP 500 0 

<( 

z SAVSARP 20,923 0 
0 

Cortaro-Marana Irrigation District 1,000 0 

Kai Farms - Red Rock 1,077 0 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 36,873 0 

Tucson AMA Subtotal 36,873 

TOTAL INTRASTATE & INTERSTATE DELIVERIES 135,576 0 

TOTAL DELIVERIES 135,576 



Appendix B 
CAP Delivery Schedule 

(Acre-Feet) 

Bankinq Pool5 

Total CAP Federal & 
Year Deliveries 1 M&l2 lndian3 Ag4 CAGRD AWBA 

2013 1,590,000 671,500 425,700 400,000 10,000 82,800 

2014 1,585,000 672,500 426,200 400,000 7,900 78,400 

2015 1,580,000 673,500 426,700 400,000 7,400 72,400 

2016 1,575,000 674,500 427,200 400,000 6,800 66,500 

2017 1,575,000 675,500 427,700 300,000 16,100 155,700 

2018 1,575,000 676,500 428,200 300,000 16,100 154,200 

2019 1,575,000 677,500 428,700 300,000 16,000 152,800 

2020 1,575,000 678,500 429,200 300,000 16,000 151,300 

2021 1,575,000 679,500 429,700 300,000 15,900 149,900 

2022 1,575 000 680,500 430,200 300 000 15 900 148,400 

1 
Based on average deliveries and remaining use of SRP exchange water 

2 Includes excess CAP, and federal water used by M&I users through leases, exchanges and 
assignments 

3 Includes on and off-reservation deliveries for Indian uses (including recharge) 
4 

NIA pool water, including deliveries made to the Harquahala Irrigation Non-expansion Area 
5 Based on a planning assumption that CAWCD's current Access to Excess policy is extended 



APPENDIX C 
STORAGE FACILITIES AVAILABLE TO THE AWBA 

(as used in the Ten-Year Plan) 

Facility Facility Capacity 
Year 

Volume of Water 
Name of Facility 1

Permit Permitted Available Last Water Last 
Expiration Capacity to AWBA2 Stored 

(AF) (AF) Stored 
(AF) 

PHOENIX -GSF3 

Queen Creek Irrigation District 12/2015 28,000 7,000 2011 6,751 
New Magma Irrigation & Drainage District 8/2012" 54,000 

PHOENIX -USF 
Agua Fria RecharQe Project 05/2019 100,000 5,000 2010 2,604 
Hieroglyphic Mtns. Recharge Project 12/2021 35,000 5,000 2010 5,002 
Tonopah Desert Recharge Project 09/2025 150,000 100,000 2011 53,830 
Superstition Mtns. Recharqe Project 01/2028 56,500� 10,000 2011 2,444 

PINAL-GSF 
Central Arizona Irrigation & Drainage District 12/2017 110,000 60,000 2011 21,610 
Hohokam Irrigation & Drainage District 10/20124 55,000 20,000 2011 3,942 
Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation &Drainage 12/2019 120,000 60,000 2011 7,500 District 

TUCSON-GSF 
BKW Farms 9/2014 14,316 2,000 n/ab n/a 
Cortaro-Marana rriqation District 11/2013 20,000 5,000 2011 1,000 
Kai-Farms - Red Rock 11/2016 11,231 2,000 2011 1,077 

TUCSON-USF 
Avra Valley Recharge Project 03/2018 11,000 2,000 2011 1,572 
CAVSARP 12/2028 100,000 5,000 2011 500 
Lower Santa Cruz Recharge Project 02/2019 50,000 25,000 2011 11,801 
Pima Mine Road RecharQe Project 09/2020 30,000 5,000 2009 16 
SAVSARP 01/2028 60,000 30,000 2011 20,923 

Footnotes: 
(1) As additional facilities are developed, they will be included in future plans.
(2) This does not reflect the actual "permitted" volume for these facilities; instead for the purposes of this plan, staff

relied on average historical storage volumes and potential for future storage. Capacity available to the AWBA
at the Avra Valley Recharge Project is based on the operator's estimated annual averages for the Ten-Year
Planning period.

(3) The AWBA also holds a water storage permit at Tonopah Irrigation District GSF (15,000 AF), however use of
the facility was not considered significant in this Ten-Year Plan.

(4) Permit renewal application pending with ADWR.
(5) Phase one of the facility is permitted for 25,000 AF per year.
(6) No deliveries to date.



APPENDIX D 
Credits Developed for M&I Firming Utilizing the 4¢ Tax 1

(Acre-feet) 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available4 Used Earned Available4 Used Earned 
N Pre-olan3 560,960 757,914 
<C 2013 16,135 0 0 100,243 21,033 19,561 
:E 2014 15,922 0 0 100,448 18,561 17,262 
<C 

� 
2015 15,977 0 0 101,271 19,104 17,766 

z 
2016 17,040 0 0 100,863 13,230 12,304 

w 2017 7,075 7,075 6,580 108,000 108,000 100,440 
0 2018 7,110 7,110 6,613 108,000 108,000 100,440 
::c 

2019 7,214 7,214 6,709 108,000 108,000 100,440 CL 
2020 7,316 7,316 6,804 108,000 108,000 100,440 
2021 7,417 7,417 6,898 108,000 108,000 100,440 
2022 7,517 7,517 6,991 107,500 107,500 99,975 

Total 601,555 1,426,982 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Year Available4 Used Earned Available4 Used Earned 
Pre-plan3 191,167 

N 2013 115,550 0 0 - - -
<C 

2014 128,480 0 0 :E 
- - -

<C 2015 129,474 0 0 - - -
..J 2016 129,978 0 0 - - -
<C 2017 130,256 10,328 9,605 - - -
z 

2018 130,230 9,385 8,728 - - -

2019 130,250 5,927 5,512 - - -

2020 130,269 0 0 - - -

2021 130,288 0 0 - - -

2022 130,307 0 0 - - -

Total 215,012 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Year Available4 Used Earned Available4 Used Earned 

N 
Pre-plan3 16,927 372,976 

<C 2013 3,628 3,628 3,374 56,386 19,281 17,931 
:E 2014 3,871 3,871 3,600 58,064 19,844 18,455 
<C 2015 4,119 4,119 3,831 61,860 18,519 17,223 
z 2016 4,247 4,247 3,950 61,755 19,864 18,473 
0 

2017 4,315 0 0 67,042 0 0 
2018 4,331 0 0 67,042 0 0 

::, 
2019 4,360 0 0 67,042 0 0 I-
2020 4,389 0 0 67,042 0 0 
2021 4,417 0 0 65,900 0 0 
2022 4,445 0 0 65,500 0 0 

Total 31,682 445,058 

Footnotes: 
(1) Development of M&I firming credits followed utilization of other funds in the Arizona Water Banking Fund.
(2) M&I firming targets are Phoenix AMA - 1.566 MAF, Pinal AMA- 243,000 AF, and Tucson AMA- 864,000

AF.
(3) Cumulative totals for 1997-2012; 2012 credits estimated based on projected deliveries.

(4) The capacity available is based on the capacity remaining at the USFs and GSFs after all higher priority
demands have been met.



APPENDIX E 
Credits Developed for Meeting AMA Water Management Goals 

Utilizing Withdrawal Fees 1 

(Acre-feet) 

Groundwater Savings Under �round Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available3 Used Earned Available3 Used Earned 
Pre-plan2 151,151 138,492 

<( 2013 22,000 5,865 5,454 108,000 7,757 7,214 
<( 2014 21,000 5,078 4,722 108,000 7,552 7,023 
� 2015 21,000 5,023 4,671 108,000 6,729 6,258 
z 2016 21,000 3,960 3,683 108,000 7,137 6,637 
w 2017 20,000 12,925 12,020 108,000 0 0 
0 

2018 20,000 12,890 11,987 108,000 0 0 
D.. 2019 20,000 12,786 11,891 108,000 0 0 

2020 20,000 12,684 11,796 108,000 0 0 
2021 20,000 12,583 11,702 108,000 0 0 
2022 20,000 12,483 11,609 107,500 0 0 

Total 240,686 165,624 
Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 
Available3 Used Earned Available3 Used Earned 

Pre-plan2 391,332 0 

er; 2013 128,000 12,450 10,649 - - -

� 2014 140,000 11,520 9,784 - - -

er; 2015 140,000 10,526 8,859 - - -
.J 2016 140,000 10,022 8,390 - - -
er; 2017 140,000 9,744 8,131 z 

- - -

D.. 2018 140,000 9,770 8,156 - - -

2019 140,000 9,750 8,138 - - -

2020 140,000 9,731 8,120 - - -

2021 140,000 9,712 8,102 - - -

2022 140,000 9,693 8,084 - - -

Total 477,745 0 
Groundwater Savings Under �round Storage 

Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 
Available3 Used Earned Available3 Used Earned 

er; 
Pre-plan" 5,715 92,387 

:i!: 2013 7,000 3,372 3,136 56,386 0 0 
er; 2014 7,000 3,129 2,910 58,064 0 0 
z 2015 7,000 2,881 2,679 61,860 0 0 
0 2016 7,000 2,753 2,560 61,755 0 0 

2017 7,000 2,685 2,497 67,042 0 0 
0 2018 7,000 2,669 2,482 67,042 0 0 

2019 7,000 2,640 2,455 67,042 0 0 
2020 7 000 2,611 2,429 67,042 0 0 
2021 7,000 2,583 2,402 65,900 0 0 
2022 7,000 2,555 2,377 65,500 0 0 

Total 31,642 92,387 

(1) Expenditure of withdrawal fees was given the highest priority.
(2) Cumulative totals for 1997-2012; 2012 credits estimated based on projected deliveries.
(3) The capacity available is based on the capacity remaining at the USFs and GSFs after all higher priority

demands have been met.



APPENDIX F 
Credits Developed Utilizing Annual General Fund Appropriations1

·
2 

{Acre-feet) 
Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 
Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 

<( 
Pre-olan3 16,275 26,041 

:i: 2013 16,135 0 0 100,243 0 0 

<( 2014 15,922 0 0 100,448 0 0 

� 2015 15,977 0 0 101,271 0 0 

z 2016 17,040 0 0 100,863 0 0 
w 2017 7,075 0 0 108,000 0 0 
0 2018 7,110 0 0 108,000 0 0 

2019 7,214 0 0 108,000 0 0 

2020 7,316 0 0 108,000 0 0 

2021 7,417 0 0 108,000 0 0 

2022 7,517 0 0 107,500 0 0 

Total 16,275 26,041 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 
Pre-plan3 306 968 

<( 2013 128,000 0 0 - - -

:i: 2014 140,000 0 0 -
.
- -

<( 2015 140,000 0 0 - - -
..J 2016 140,000 0 0 - - -
<( 

2017 140,000 0 0 z 
- - -

ii: 2018 140,000 0 0 - - -

2019 140,000 0 0 - - -

2020 140,000 0 0 - - -

2021 140,000 0 0 - - -

2022 140,000 0 0 - - -

Total 306,968 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 
Pre-plan3 2,846 51,700 

<( 2013 7,000 0 0 65,800 0 0 
:i: 

2014 7,000 0 0 66,909 0 0 <( 

z 
2015 7 000 0 0 67,359 0 0 

0 2016 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 
en 2017 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 
0 

2018 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 

2019 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 

2020 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 

2021 7,000 0 0 65,900 0 0 

2022 7,000 0 0 65,500 0 0 

Total 2,846 51,700 

Footnotes: 
(1) The Ten-Year Plan does not include a component for General Fund appropriations.
(2) The on-river M&I firming target is 420,000 AF.
(3) Cumulative totals for 1997-2012.



APPENDIXG 
Credits Developed Utilizing Funds Dedicated for Shortage Reparations 1

(Acre-feet) 
Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 
Available2 Used Earned Available Used Earned 

<C 
Pre-plan3 4,590 16,051 

:i 
2013 16,135 0 0 100,243 0 0 

<C 2014 15,922 0 0 100,448 0 0 

� 2015 15,977 0 0 101,271 0 0 

z 2016 17,040 0 0 100,863 0 0 
w 2017 7,075 0 0 108,000 0 0 
0 

2018 7,110 0 0 108,000 0 0 

2019 7,214 0 0 108,000 0 0 

2020 7,316 0 0 108,000 0 0 

2021 7,417 0 0 108,000 0 0 

2022 7,517 0 0 107,500 0 0 

Total 4,590 16,051 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available2 Used Earned Available Used Earned 
Pre-plan3 

60,782 

<C 2013 128,000 0 0 - - -

:!!: 2014 140,000 0 0 - - -
<C 2015 140,000 0 0 - - -
..J 2016 140,000 0 0 - - -
<C 

2017 140,000 0 0 z 
- - -

ii: 2018 140,000 0 0 - - -

2019 140,000 0 0 - - -

2020 140,000 0 0 - - -

2021 140,000 0 0 - - -

2022 140,000 0 0 - - -

Total 60,782 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available2 Used Earned Available Used Earned 
Pre-plan3 0 1,227 

<C 2013 7,000 0 0 65,800 9,414 8,755 
:!!: 

2014 7,000 0 0 66,909 8,845 8,226 <C 
z 

2015 7,000 0 0 67,359 5,499 5,114 

0 2016 7,000 0 0 67,042 5,287 4,917 

2017 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 
0 

2018 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 

2019 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 

2020 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 

2021 7,000 0 0 65,900 0 0 

2022 7,000 0 0 65,500 0 0 

Total 0 28,239 

Footnotes: 
(1) $8 million received from Nevada pursuant to the Arizona-Nevada Shortage-Sharing Agreement to assist

Arizona in offsetting the impacts of shortages during the Interim Period.
(2) The capacity available is based on the capacity remaining at the USFs and GSFs after all higher priority

demands have been met.
(3) Cumulative totals for 1997-2012.



APPENDIX H 
Credits Developed Utilizing Indian Settlement Appropriations 1 

(Acre-feet). 

Groundwater Savings UnderQround Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 

<C 
Pre-plan 0 0 

:i: 
2013 16,135 0 0 100,243 0 0 

<C 2014 15,922 0 0 100,448 0 0 

� 2015 15,977 0 0 101,271 0 0 

z 2016 17,040 0 0 100,863 0 0 
2017 7,075 0 0 108,000 0 0 

0 2018 7,110 0 0 108,000 0 0 
Q. 2019 7,214 0 0 108,000 0 0 

2020 7,316 0 0 108,000 0 0 
2021 7,417 0 0 108,000 0 0 
2022 7,517 0 0 107,500 0 0 

Total 0 0 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 

Pre-plan 0 

<C 2013 128,000 0 0 - - -

:i: 2014 140,000 0 0 - - -
<C 2015 140,000 0 0 - - -
..J 2016 140,000 0 0 - - -
<C 

2017 140,000 0 0 z 
- - -

Q. 2018 140,000 0 0 - - -

2019 140,000 0 0 - - -

2020 140,000 0 0 - - -

2021 140,000 0 0 - - -

2022 140,000 0 0 - - -

Total 0 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 2 

Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 
Pre-plan 0 28,481 

<C 2013 7,000 0 0 65,800 0 0 
:i: 

2014 7,000 0 0 66,909 0 0 <C 

z 
2015 7,000 0 0 67,359 0 0 

0 2016 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 
2017 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 

0 
2018 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 
2019 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 
2020 7,000 0 0 67,042 0 0 
2021 7,000 0 0 65,900 0 0 
2022 7,000 0 0 65,500 0 0 

Total 0 28,481 

Footnotes: 
(1) The State Indian firming target is estimated at 550,000 AF.
(2) Credits accrued through the expenditure of $3 million for assisting Federal government in meeting its firming

obligation under Section 306 of the Arizona Water Settlements Act.



APPENDIX I 
Potential Credits Developed for Interstate Water Banking 1 

{Acre-feet) 

Available CAP 
Available 

Remaining Interstate 
Year AWBA 

Supplies 2 

Capacity3 Supply 4 Credits 5 

Pre-plan
° 

600,651 
2013 0 248,000 0 0 
2014 0 264,509 0 0 
2015 0 270,959 0 0 
2016 0 276,542 0 0 
2017 4,944 191,286 0 4,598 
2018 4,377 192,219 0 4,070 
2019 6,483 195,725 0 6,029 
2020 10,958 201,700 0 10,191 
2021 9,605 200,605 0 8,933 
2022 8,652 200,252 0 8,046 

Total 642,518 

Footnotes: 

(1) The AWBA has an obligation to have 1,250,000 acre-feet of credits for the SNWA.

(2) Water available for Interstate Banking is calculated by subtracting the water delivered and stored by the
AWBA for intrastate water banking from the total water supply available for the AWBA (see Appendix
B).

(3) Reflects the unused capacity available to the AWBA at USFs and GSFs in the Phoenix, Pinal, and
Tucson AMAs. Additional capacity may be available at individual facilities based on the utilization by
individual water storage permit holders.

(4) Remaining supplies after subtracting the water delivered and stored by the AWBA for intrastate water
banking and water delivered for interstate water banking.

(5) Based on the available supplies or the available AWBA capacity, whichever is less, available funding
and an annual limitation of 200,000 AF/YR.

(6) Cumulative totals for 2002-2012; 2012 credits estimated based on projected deliveries.



APPENDIXJ 

CA WCD PROCEDURE TO DISTRIBUTE 
EXCESS WATER 

IN 2010 THROUGH 2014 
Adopted June 4, 2009 

Staff has worked with stakeholders to develop procedures that balance competing interests for the limited 
supply of Excess CAP water. The outcome of this "Access to Excess" process is a Staff Proposal that relies, 
where possible, on consensus among the stakeholders. 

From the total available Excess supply, the Agricultural Settlement Pool is filled first, and is not subject to 
"Access to Excess" provisions. The Staff Proposal then creates four separate pools, in effect for a five year 
period (2010 through 2014). The pools are: A WBA & CAGRD Replenishment Reserve; CAGRD Annual 
Replenishment; Municipal; Industrial & Other. 

The A WBA and CAGRD Replenishment Reserve share a pool of a fixed volume of 175,000 acre-feet 
(A WBA/RR pool). Allocation within this pool is set as part of the existing annual A WBA-CA WCD 
coordination and public meetings. A WBA may use the water for any authorized purpose. 

The pool established for the CAGRD's annual replenishment is capped at 35,000 acre�feet. The remaining 
volume is split evenly between a Municipal pool and an Industrial & Other pool. Water not used by the A WBA 
or CAGRD in either of their pools is split between the Municipal pool and the Industrial & Other pool. 

The Municipal Pool is for public & private water providers. Access within the pool incorporates two different 
approaches: historic use, and equal shares. Historic use is based on each provider's maximum use (Incentive 
plus Full Cost Excess) between 2005 and 2009. In the first year (2010), historic use is the primary allocation 
mechanism (90%), with a small volume (10%) apportioned equally. By the fifth year (2014), the two 
approaches have equal weighting. 

The Industrial & Other pool is open to all other users, but is broken into two tiers-Industrial Tier ( direct use or 
users storing water for a specific project) and Remarketer Tier (users storing water for future credit resale). All 
of the orders for the Industrial Tier users will be filled before allocating and filling orders for the Remarketer 
Tier. Access within the pool is based on a three year rolling average of actual water deliveries for each entity. 
Small users (orders less than 1,000 acre feet/year) will receive their full order as long as that order is not greater 
than in the previous three years. 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

FY 2012 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

STAFFING 

Department of Water Resources Cost of Services 

Personnel Services 
Water Bank Manager 

Water Bank Technical Administrator 

Attorney 

Total FTE 

2.5 

Employee Related Expenditures (at 40% of Personnel Services) 

Permanent Part Time 0.5 
Accountant 

Indirect Cost (at 51.7% of Personnel Service & ERE) 

Central Arizona Project Cost of Services 

Personnel Services & ERE 
Water System Engineer 

Customer Service Coordinator 

Hydrologist 

Administrative S upport 

Subtotal Staffing 

OTHER COSTS 

Professional & Outside Services 

Travel 
Instate Travel 

Out of State Travel 

Operating Expenses 
Standard per employee 3.0 

Miscellaneous 

Equipment 

Subtotal Other Costs 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$500 

$598,369 $470,877 

Cost Actual Cost 
$483,869 $362,484 

$201,370 $ 150,123 

80,548 $ 53,489 

28,056 $ 29,710 

173,895 $ 129,162 

$21,000 $21,000 

$21,000 $21,000 

$504,869 $383,484 

$90,000 $ 89,981 

$3,500 $1,130 
$3,500 $1,130 

$0 $0 

$ (3,718) 
$1,500 ($3,718) 
$4,925 

$0 $0 

$93,500 $ 87,393 



DRAFT 6/2012 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

FY 2013 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

STAFFING 

Department of Water Resources Cost of Services 

Personnel Services 
Water Bank Manager 

Water Bank Technical Administrator 

Attorney 

Accountant 

Total FTE 

3.0 

Employee Related Expenditures (at 40% of Personnel Services) 

Indirect Cost (at 51. 7% of Personnel Service & ERE) 

Central Arizona Project Cost of Services 

Personnel Services & ERE (pursuant to IGA) 

Subtotal Staffing 

OTHER COSTS 

Professional & Outside Services 
(includes Alternate Contribution Rate of 8.64%) 

Travel 
Instate Travel 

Out of State Travel 

Operating Expenses 

Equipment 

Standard per employee 

Miscellaneous 

Subtotal Other Costs 

3.0 

$601,411 

Cost 
$475,386 

$223,838 

$ 89,535 

$ 162,014 

$21,000 

$21,000 

$496,386 

$90,000 

$3,500 
$3,500 

$0 

$6,425 
$500 $1,500 

$4,925 

$5,100 

$105,025 



DRAFT 6/2012 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

TRAVEL 

Meetings $/Meeting Cost 

INSTATE TRAVEL 

Authority Members 

Marshall Brown 5 $0 $0 

Maureen George 5 $0 $0 

Sandra Fabritz-Whitney 5 $0 $0 

John Mawhinney 5 $100 $500 

Lisa Atkins 5 $0 $0 

Subtotal $500 

Authority Staff 

Manager 5 $0 $0 

3 $600 $1,800 

Technical Administrator 5 $0 $0 

2 $400 $800 

Other Support 1 $400 $400 

Subtotal $3,000 

Motor Pool $0 

Instate Total $3,500 

OUT OF STATE TRAVEL 

Authority Members No out of state travel is anticipated for Authority Members 

Authority Staff 

Total Out of State 

Total Travel 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 

Miscellaneous 

Manager 

Technical Administrator 

Other Support 

Web Domain 

Telecomm 

Other 

Permits 

Total Operating Expenses 

EQUIPMENT 

Computer Upgrade 

Total Equipment 

1 $1,000 

0 

0 

Units Unit Cost 

3 $1,700 

$1,000 

$0 

$0 

$1,000 

$4,500 

Cost 

$125 

$200 

$600 

$925 

Cost 

$5,100 

$5,100 

Sheet 2013-2 




